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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We will now resume

          3  the recessed Hearing of the Housing and Buildings

          4  Committee from yesterday.

          5                 The Commissioner has gracefully

          6  agreed to come back and continue a brief Q&A session

          7  of about 30 to 45 minutes, and then he has to go.

          8                 So, what we're going to do, is we're

          9  going just open it up directly for questions.  There

         10  will be no testimony that the Commissioner will

         11  give, and I guess we'll continue along the line of

         12  questioning that we have today.

         13                 The first member that's going to open

         14  it up for questioning at this point will be Council

         15  Member Mendez; and if there's any other Members that

         16  care to question the Commissioner, let me know, and

         17  then I'll close the questioning and then we'll get

         18  to the public, and we would imagine that we'd get to

         19  the public very shortly.

         20                 So, at this point I turn it over to

         21  Council Member Mendez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 Commissioner, gentlemen, thank you

         25  for being here again today.
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          2                 My first question is as a result of

          3  some testimony we heard yesterday, where various

          4  people, not-for-profit and for-profit developers,

          5  and Mr. Spinola from REBNY, in response to some of

          6  my questions, indicated that there were certain

          7  communities that could bear a 70/30 with 30 percent

          8  affordable housing.  Not everywhere, but in certain

          9  communities, most likely Manhattan, and particularly

         10  my District they thought was one of the communities

         11  that could bear the 30 percent, and I just would

         12  like to know what you think about that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  We did discuss

         14  this, I think, somewhat, during the testimony,

         15  during my testimony yesterday, and the Q&A.  I

         16  think, again, the thing that we are most concerned

         17  about is a sort of -- kind of one size fits all

         18  approach to 421-A, whether it be the exclusion zone,

         19  whether it be the percentage of affordable housing,

         20  et cetera.

         21                 So, I want to just begin by saying,

         22  we are extremely concerned that you have to look at,

         23  and as I think you are indicating, the economics of

         24  a particular neighborhood, not just in location, but

         25  also over time; and, in fact, is it possible that
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          2  there are conditions at certain times and in certain

          3  neighborhoods, and in potentially with other

          4  benefits, where you could get to 30 percent

          5  affordable housing? I think the answer to that, you

          6  have to agree, that that would be, yes.

          7                 On the other hand, right now, and if

          8  you look at Manhattan, I would go back to the

          9  example that I gave yesterday, we've seen very

         10  little 80/20 development in this current market, in

         11  Manhattan, in the highest value areas of Manhattan,

         12  because the level of land prices have been high

         13  enough that market-rate condominiums without the

         14  80/20s have been more profitable.

         15                 So, I am concerned about even taking

         16  as broad a brush as saying, all of Manhattan, 70/30

         17  would be feasible because, given the current

         18  conditions that we see, we just don't see, even

         19  80/20s being done today.

         20                 Now, I do think that eliminating the

         21  certificate program will help to bring condominiums

         22  and rentals back into balance.  So, I'm hopeful,

         23  that with the changes proposed in 486, we would see

         24  an increasing number of developers choosing to do

         25  80/20.
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          2                 I also think that, as for example, we

          3  do rezonings, I think it makes a lot of sense to

          4  look at, and this is what we've done Hudson Yards

          5  and West Chelsea, to look at the particulars of the

          6  market, with the inclusionary benefits, to be able

          7  to offer options, where some of them go to 25 or 30

          8  percent affordable housing.  And, in fact, we've

          9  been willing to do that, we did that with the

         10  Council's agreement in Hudson Yards and in West

         11  Chelsea.

         12                 So, again, I do think that in the

         13  right circumstances, in the right locations, it is

         14  possible to get higher than 20 percent affordable.

         15  I don't think, based on our analysis, that you can

         16  say that all of Manhattan today, or the vast portion

         17  of Manhattan, is ready to be able to produce more

         18  than 20 percent affordable, just with the 421-A

         19  benefits.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you.

         21                 The other issue that's come up and is

         22  the $400 million for this fund.  Many of us feel

         23  that it just isn't enough money, and that the

         24  additional tax revenues generated by the proposed

         25  reforms will be much larger than this.
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          2                 Is there any thought to expanding the

          3  fund and putting more money into that pot?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  First of all,

          5  I'd make a point that I made briefly in the

          6  testimony yesterday, that we're not just talking

          7  about a benefit of $400 million from all of the

          8  reforms that are being proposed here.  When the

          9  Mayor announced the task force for 421-A, he did

         10  commit that at least $200 million would be available

         11  in  --  to expand the new housing marketplace plan

         12  as a result of 421-A reform.   And based on the way

         13  the reforms have gone and the discussions have gone,

         14  that commitment stands at $300 million  of

         15  additional funding for the new housing marketplace

         16  plan.

         17                 So, in total, if you look at those

         18  together, you are talking about significantly more

         19  than the $400 million.

         20                 To be clear, the $400 million was a

         21  replacement for the certificate program, at a

         22  significantly higher funding level. I was just

         23  looking for a chart, which I thought I had, on the

         24  funding that has been available through the

         25  certificate program. But, if you look at the life of
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          2  the  --  the last ten years of the certificate

          3  program, you're talking about roughly a value of

          4  about $300 million that's come from the certificate

          5  program over the last ten years.  And so the $400

          6  million commitment represents a substantial increase

          7  from that.

          8                 I think one of the misunderstandings

          9  here, a number of people appointed to the last two

         10  years of productions under the certificate program,

         11  which has been close to a thousand units, just in

         12  the last two years.  But, if you go back three or

         13  four years, what you find is a production level

         14  dramatically lower than that, in the neighborhood of

         15  a hundred to two hundred units.  I have this chart

         16  here; and, in fact, if you go back to 1992 to 95,

         17  you see no units, whatsoever, produced in those

         18  years.

         19                 So, I think if you were to assume

         20  that the market is going to be at a 35 year high for

         21  the rest of time, absolutely, the certificate

         22  program could produce thousands of  --  a thousand

         23  units a year.  But that simply has not been the

         24  history, and I don't think its  --  would be

         25  impossible to expect that the market won't go
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          2  through the cycles that it has always gone through.

          3  And, based on that, we certainly believe that the

          4  $400 million is more than we would be able to get

          5  out of the certificate program during a similar

          6  period.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  My colleague,

          8  Gale Brewer, kept asking all the panelists yesterday

          9  about permanency.  She is not here today, so I'm

         10  just going to raise this, and also add that when

         11  Steven Spinola was here from REBNY, he indicated

         12  that he would like to see some permanent units out

         13  of the 80/20.  I understand that that is something

         14  that is done is Albany.  Would the Administration

         15  support the Council in trying to get permanent units

         16  out of this 80/20 affordable housing?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  The first

         18  thing I would say is that clearly we have tried to

         19  find ways to increase the length of time that these

         20  units are affordable.  In fact, one of the things

         21  that we did in cooperation with the Council, which I

         22  think was terrific, is, where there is inclusionary

         23  zoning, we actually are requiring that the units

         24  stay affordable permanently.  And, again, to go back

         25  to the principle of, you know, -- if there's a
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          2  lifetime benefit, then there should be a lifetime

          3   --  if there's a lifetime benefit to the property

          4  and the developer, there aught to be a lifetime

          5  benefit to the public through the affordable

          6  housing.

          7                 In the case of inclusionary zoning,

          8  there's a permanent benefit to the developer because

          9  they're extra stories that are added to the

         10  building, and those are always there.  And so, in

         11  exchange, what we required, was permanent

         12  affordability for those units.

         13                 As you rightly indicate, the Council

         14  doesn't have a, have the power to increase the

         15  length of time of the 421-A benefits.  The Council

         16  only has the power to reduce what the State has laid

         17  out in State law, and the maximum benefit in State

         18  law is the 25 years.

         19                 So, it's certainly something we'd be

         20  willing to look at; and I think we support,

         21  generally, the principle of longer- term

         22  affordability.  I think the concern would be that at

         23  the end of the day, we're going to have to look at

         24  the cost of that and the amount of tax revenues that

         25  would be foregone, and to see whether the benefits
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          2  of the longer term is worth the additional costs

          3  that's there.  So, we'd be happy to work closely

          4  with the Council to look at that, and to understand

          5  what the right balance might be there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I just want

          7  to thank you again for rearranging your schedule to

          8  be here today to answer our questions.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Council Member

         11  Viverito.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair.  And Commissioner, again, thank you for

         14  the time over the past two days, and for the other

         15  meetings in terms of helping to listen to our

         16  concerns and also to clarify some items.

         17                 Just to understand the issue of the

         18  trust fund, again, because, I guess the concern

         19  comes about whether, during hard times, if the City

         20  can dip into it.  My understanding, based on what

         21  you've said, is, that since that money, the $400

         22  million, which we hope will increase, once it is

         23  transferred over to HDC, it becomes protected at

         24  that time.  We cannot go back to it as a City when

         25  we are having difficult times, or slow down the
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          2  process, et cetera.  I just want clarification on

          3  the protection of that money so that it's

          4  specifically for affordable housing.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: That's correct.

          6  HDC is not a City agency, it's an authority created

          7  through State law and is completely outside the City

          8  appropriations process.  So, an asset or funding

          9  that is at HDC, that belongs to HDC, cannot, in any

         10  way, be subject to being taken for the City capital,

         11  or the City budget in general.  So, it is a separate

         12  entity.  That was exactly why we thought it was a

         13  good vehicle for protection from the regular

         14  appropriations process.

         15            It also  --  I think an added benefit is

         16  that by State law, HDC's only purpose is to create

         17  affordable housing.  So there's no chance that the

         18  money might get used for some other purpose other

         19  than affordable housing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  Now,

         21  considering that there is going to be potentially

         22  five to seven percent may be used a year, and the

         23  rest is going to be invested, what is the expected

         24  return on that money?  How long do you project this

         25  fund lasting in terms of  --  to apply towards
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          2  affordable housing?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Based on the

          4  analysis that we've done, both of interest that

          5  would be earned on the fund, and in addition to

          6  that, repayments back to HDC from projects over

          7  time, our analysis is that the fund could

          8  permanently support funding for about 600 units a

          9  year in the long term.

         10                 So our projections are that in the

         11  initial years there would be a thousand units funded

         12  per year, and that

         13  through  --  in perpetuity, you would be able to get

         14  a level of about 600 units a year produced.

         15                 So, again, under reasonable

         16  assumptions about interest rates, about repayments

         17  from those projects, the fund would be available in

         18  perpetuity to fund affordable housing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  Another

         20  quick point that I think  --  you know, I was part

         21  of the Bronx Delegation meeting earlier today with

         22  you, and I think that it's clear  --  I felt that it

         23  was important to clarify, and I'm glad that you were

         24  able to, that considering that at some point in

         25  certain parts of those Districts that we represent,
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          2  land is becoming kind of scarce, City- owned land.

          3  That with regards to the 421-A benefit not being

          4  able to be applied for potential- like condo

          5  conversions or, for buildings that are going under

          6  this renovation or that may be, you know,

          7  ingentrifying areas in particular.

          8                 So, there is no loophole, there is no

          9  opportunity for that benefit to be applied in those

         10  scenarios, correct?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  I'm sorry can

         12  you  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  For the

         14  condo conversion and terms of when the benefit can

         15  be applied --

         16                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Right.  That's

         17  absolutely right.  There are very strict rules built

         18  into the State law that 421-A is a program for new

         19  construction, that it cannot be used for conversion

         20  of existing buildings.  That's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  And then

         22  just lastly, in your presentation yesterday you

         23  mentioned a lot about 80 percent of the affordable

         24  units built in the outer Boroughs is affordable to

         25  families of four earning less than $120,000, I
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          2  forget what the

          3  exact  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  $106,000.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  $106,000.

          6  But what are the figures when you talk about

          7  Manhattan, in particular.  What is the affordability

          8  factor with regards to the housing that's been built

          9  through the 421- a?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Let me see if

         11  I can get those figures.  I think the issue is  --

         12  as I'm sure you wouldn't be surprised, there's a

         13  large number, particularly because of the

         14  certificate program, of very high- end units that

         15  have been getting 421-A benefits.  I used an example

         16  yesterday of a building with average $4 million

         17  apartments that are getting, per unit, about

         18  $300,000 a unit in benefits from 421-A.

         19                 So, the data  --  the reason why I

         20  excluded Manhattan, is because of the exclusion

         21  zone.  We weren't able to separate out the exclusion

         22  zone portion of Manhattan in the data, from the non-

         23  exclusion zone, which I think would be sort of the

         24  relevant information.  I'd be happy to try and get

         25  more information on that.  But, let me see if I have
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          2  this data here.

          3                 Okay.  What the data are  --  and

          4  again, this is for Manhattan, in general, is that

          5  about, let's see, 38 percent of the units are

          6  affordable to  --  I'm just trying to translate here

          7    -- income levels that are slightly higher, so

          8  probably about $125,000 a year in income.  So about

          9  38 percent total.  Again, what I don't have, I would

         10  imagine that the vast majority of those units are

         11  produced outside of the exclusion zone, and the

         12  higher level units are produced within the exclusion

         13  zone.  But we could try and separate that data out a

         14  little bit more for you if that would be helpful.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  And in

         16  moving forward in terms of the demand for the 421-A

         17  recipient or the beneficiaries of them in terms of

         18  development, now having to do the on- site

         19  affordability, and also with the AV cap, I guess to

         20  a certain extent, although I think it should have

         21  been lower, and I think many of us believe it should

         22  have been lower, that, hopefully, that's what we're

         23  trying to prevent at this point.  I mean, that, I

         24  think, that that policy prior to these changes,

         25  really, kind of exacerbated certain segregation of
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          2  the way the housing was being built; and that's one

          3  of the concerns I have.  We definitely, I think as a

          4  City Council, really shouldn't be kind of promoting

          5  that type of policy, that kind of promotes

          6  segregation.  That way, you know what let's build

          7  the low- income housing or the middle- income

          8  housing off site and let's just do this as luxury

          9  housing, which is, I think, the way the systems was

         10  in place before.

         11                 So, I just wanted to kind of, I mean

         12  I just wanted to get a sense, because you were

         13  making an issue of it that great number was

         14  available, 81 percent was affordable to families  --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VIVERITO:  --  Below

         17  106.  I have a felling the numbers are very

         18  different in the Manhattan scenario, which is the

         19  primary aspect of my District.  But, with that I'll

         20  leave it.

         21                 I thank you very much for your

         22  information.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  And I couldn't

         24  agree more on this issue of off site.  That we

         25  clearly want to make sure we have integrated
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          2  neighborhoods.

          3                 Just one more quick answer to your

          4   --  you had said before, expecting about five to

          5  seven percent, payments each year from the fund.  In

          6  fact, our assumption, based on the numbers we've

          7  run, is that it could be in perpetuity, even with

          8  the spending level in the first three years of $50

          9  million per year; and then $30 million per year

         10  after that.  So we're assuming a much larger payout,

         11  even with a much larger payout then five to seven

         12  percent, based on the returns that we expect and the

         13  repayments, the fund could last into perpetuity.

         14                 So, I think that's an important just

         15  clarification based on the numbers you were talking

         16  about.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, Council

         18  Member Monserrate, and then I'm going to chime in,

         19  and I'll be followed by Council Member Fidler and

         20  Jackson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         22  very much Mr. Chair, Commissioner for the

         23  Administration.

         24                 It's obviously a very important

         25  issue, and I'm very happy that we've had a second
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          2  day of these hearings to kind of make up for some

          3  ground that I would have liked to have covered

          4  yesterday.

          5                 Let me say, first and foremost, that

          6  the debate has been spirited, and even though there

          7  is a diverges of views on many core issues, I do

          8  understand that, and I believe that there is a

          9  certain sincerity for the ends to be had, and that

         10  is the creation of more affordability.

         11                 I do want to delve into some of the

         12  questions that I had left over from yesterday's

         13  hearing. In particular, I want to draw your

         14  attention to your own chart, where you have Effects

         15  of 421-A on Middle Income Housing, you have a

         16  picture of a construction  --  the constructed

         17  building on 108th Street in Corona.  You testified

         18  yesterday, and I wasn't  --  I left  --  I didn't

         19  have the opportunity to follow up with you.  But you

         20  testified yesterday that it was one of your concerns

         21  was that the builders absent of 421-A, would not

         22  build this type of construction.  That was your  --

         23  right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Now, my
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          2  question is  -- really what I am trying find out,

          3  what analysis  --  what brought you to that

          4  conclusion.  When I look at your chart, it has one

          5  column is says "14 Year- 421-A" and then it has "No

          6  14- 421- A". You have the sales price at the same

          7  exact figure.  So, my question really to you is, why

          8  would you come up with a conclusion that the

          9  developer wouldn't build it if he is still able to

         10  built it for the same price whether he was

         11  successful at achieving 421-A benefits versus not?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.  I

         13  believe you may have raised this yesterday about the

         14  effect that 421-A has on sales price  --  in other

         15  words, how much of the benefit of 421-A goes to the

         16  developer, as opposed to how much goes to the buyer.

         17  And this is something the task force spent a

         18  substantial amount of time on, and at the end of the

         19  day, frankly, what we found in a range of different

         20  examples, is that there are situations where it  --

         21  a large share of the benefit goes to the developer

         22  in terms of price. So, in other words, the price

         23  might come down in those cases.  In other cases that

         24  a large share of it goes to the buyer in that in

         25  fact, there, there wouldn't be much variation in the

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  sales price.

          3            So, you know, on average our estimate is

          4  that about half of the benefit actually gets passed

          5  on to the home buyer.  What's clear is, I think,

          6  that there is at lease some impact.  We showed it

          7  there, in that chart as sort of an illustrative for

          8  a buyer buying a $361,000 unit, what is the impact

          9  of taxes versus no taxes.  It wasn't intended to

         10  show the impact there on the developer.  Again,

         11  there's no precise formula for exactly how much gets

         12  passed on.

         13                 What I can say, is that in general,

         14  the sales price would come down, somewhat, but it

         15  wouldn't come down enough that there would be no

         16  effect on the buyer.  There would still be a

         17  significant effect on the buyer in terms of their

         18  affordability, and that's, again, that was

         19  illustrative for looking at a unit with the same

         20  price.  And in fact you are correct, there is likely

         21  to be some effect of the price coming down on the

         22  unit.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  That was

         24  my testimony yesterday.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  My

          3  presentation to you yesterday.

          4                 All right.  I wanted to make that

          5  clear, because I believe that, that absent the 421-A

          6  benefit today, specifically in the Borough of

          7  Queens, in areas such as the area that I represent,

          8  I think that the absence of 421-A would probably not

          9  have a detrimental impact toward the development.

         10                 In other words, we understand that

         11  the forces of the market at the moment, that are

         12  still pretty good in that part of Queens, would

         13  probably continue the need for this type of

         14  development, which also obviously brings us back  --

         15  interestingly enough, my colleague was talking about

         16  a delegation meeting in the Bronx, today some of the

         17  Queens Council Members were discussing the 421-A

         18  debate, not necessarily from the affordability

         19  aspect, which is my angle, but from the fact that

         20  many Queens residence object to the fact that these

         21  multi- unit developments are happening in primarily

         22  one and two- family neighborhoods; and that they're

         23  having a negative impact on the make up of the

         24  neighborhoods, and the aesthetics of the

         25  neighborhood. And at the same time, these developers
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          2  are getting the tax abatement.  They are getting a

          3  very real public benefit.

          4                 It appears that even in the Borough

          5  of Queens there's a divergence of views of why the

          6  421-A program has not been effective for our

          7  communities, either to produce affordable housing,

          8  or, to entice developers to develop multi-family

          9  units in areas that are predominantly one - and

         10  two-family.

         11                 But, let me shift gears, and just ask

         12    --  I have two more questions, Mr. Chairman, so

         13  that you know that I don't intend to belabor the

         14  issue much longer.

         15                 I wanted to ask this question:

         16  Specifically when I look at this chart for the

         17  Borough of Queens, which we know is predominantly

         18  not in the exclusion zone, outside of the

         19  waterfront, and I zero in to certain districts that

         20  are in the NPP REMIC Zone, which are predominantly a

         21  part of Jamaica and then part of Corona and Jackson

         22  Heights, and probably a bit of Woodside and East

         23  Elmhurst.

         24                 Currently under this Bill, and the

         25  recommendations of the task force, correct me if I
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          2  am incorrect, the NPP and the REMIC provide for a

          3  volunteer  --  it's, again, a voluntary program

          4  where the developer has a choice between getting a

          5  15 year abatement, and can you explain that?

          6                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.  Actually

          7  the REMIC and the NPP areas are places where there

          8  is no choice, where every single development gets

          9  maximum 421-A benefits, or 25 years.

         10                 So, in other words, these zones were

         11  originally created specifically for the purpose of

         12  maximizing development of housing, independent of

         13  income level, at a time when there was no

         14  development whatsoever going on.  So these were,

         15  really the toughest hit neighborhoods in the 1970s

         16  and 1980s.

         17                 So, the proposal and what's contained

         18  in 486, is removing these REMIC and NPP areas.  And

         19  what that would create, in these formerly REMIC and

         20  NPP areas, is a base level benefit of 15 years for,

         21  again, moderately- priced housing, with a 25- year

         22  benefit, or the maximum benefit, only available for

         23  affordable housing.

         24                 So, in other words, for the first

         25  time it would  -- in these REMIC and NPP areas an
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          2  incentive would be created through the 421-A

          3  program, for affordable housing, by removing the

          4  REMIC and NPP provision. Does that make sense?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Somewhat.

          6    Specifically, so the developer has an option, or

          7  that he doesn't have an option?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  If the REMIC

          9  and NPP areas are eliminated, that creates the

         10  option.  So, right now, if you look at the map here,

         11  these blue areas are the REMIC and NPP.  In the rest

         12  of Queens, let's say, these non- blue areas, so

         13  outside of REMIC and NPP, currently there is this

         14  option, 15 years, if you don't do onsite low-income

         15  housing and 25 years if you do, do the onsite

         16  low-income housing.

         17                 That choice does not apply in current

         18  law in the REMIC and NPP.  If 486 were to pass,

         19  those REMIC and NPP areas would be eliminated.  At

         20  that time there would be this choice, where you

         21  could get 15 year benefits if you don't include low

         22  income onsite, and you'd get 25 years if you do

         23  include the low income onsite.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So, the

         25  Bill would eliminate REMIC and NPP in these areas?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's right.

          3  And by doing that, create an incentive to do

          4  affordable housing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Now,

          6  currently there is no choice, they would have to

          7  create affordable housing under the REMIC, NPP

          8  program.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  No.  In fact,

         10  there's no incentive to create affordable housing

         11  under REMIC, NPP, because whether you do low- income

         12  housing or not, you get exactly the same benefit.

         13  You get 25 years.  That's the way it currently

         14  works.

         15                 And again, we believe, and I think

         16  the Council would agree, that that is outdated, that

         17  there are no more neighborhoods where you should get

         18  maximum 421-A benefits without providing any low-

         19  income housing at all.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Council Member.

         24  Are you done Council Member?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Yes.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Oh, I wasn't

          4  sure.

          5                 I just want to jump in for a second

          6  because we heard some testimony yesterday regarding

          7  the elimination of the three family homes.  And you

          8  said yesterday during your testimony, that you

          9  didn't believe that the three- family homes could be

         10  built affordably in this program.  I guess, could

         11  you just explain why HPD came to that conclusion,

         12  and then what you thought the future of the

         13  construction of three- family homes in the City of

         14  New York would be if they would become ineligible

         15  for 421-A benefit.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Happy to do

         17  that.

         18                 First of all, the clear difference

         19  between one, two and three- family homes, versus

         20  four unit and larger properties, is that they're in

         21  a different tax class.  They're class 1 as opposed

         22  to class 2 for larger buildings, and based on State

         23  law, they are assessed at a dramatically lower rate

         24  than larger properties.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  That's true, but
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          2  they're in the program as it stands right now.  Is

          3  that  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  They are

          5  currently in the program; but, again, because they

          6  have this dramatically lower tax assessment than

          7  larger properties, the abatement itself is worth a

          8  lot less.  In other words, if your taxes are lower,

          9  the tax break is a smaller break, because the

         10  difference between what you are paying in taxes and

         11  zero is much smaller.

         12                 So, in effect, the 421-A benefit to

         13  three- family properties provides a much smaller

         14  incentive, or much smaller tax break than it does to

         15  properties that are taxed at a significantly higher

         16  rate, the fours and fives and particularly six and

         17  larger. And, so because of that, the impact that

         18  eliminating 421-A would have on the three- unit

         19  properties, is substantially smaller.

         20                 Our estimates are that the difference

         21  is, in terms of annual payments based on taxes,

         22  would be less than ten percent difference through

         23  the 421-A benefit.  And that for larger properties

         24  the 421-A would provide a much larger difference in

         25  the monthly payments that a homeowner would have to
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          2  make, for example for a condo or a co-op, and that's

          3  the difference.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  So, do you

          5  believe that, that if the three- family homes or the

          6  three- unit building is left out, do you believe

          7  that they'll still be built?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Well, based on

          9    --  and I have some numbers here, these are the

         10  median prices of new three family homes around New

         11  York.  So, this means that 50 percent are more

         12  expensive and 50 percent are less expensive.

         13                 For Brooklyn it was roughly $580,000,

         14  was the price of a new three- family home.  And, so,

         15  those are clearly  --  when you are going above

         16  that, the expectation would be that with this very

         17  small difference that's provided by 421-A, that

         18  you'd continue to have  --  to see the production of

         19  those.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  What are the

         21  prices in the other Boroughs, if you have them?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  For the Bronx,

         23  it's about $470,000; in Queens, the median is

         24  $770,000 for new three- families; and these are  --

         25  excuse me on second  --  $770,000, that's the data
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          2  that I have here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  Okay, so

          4  go ahead, continue.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  So, I think

          6  the important issue here is that you do have a large

          7  number of these homes that are at very high prices.

          8  The benefit itself is small; and I think our

          9  argument would be, and I think we have worked well

         10  in your District and others, that there are other

         11  ways that will more effectively target low-income

         12  people to help create new homeownership.

         13                 We have a down-payment assistance

         14  program, we've done a lot on City-owned land to

         15  create affordable homeownership in these types of

         16  buildings.  So, I think there are a range of other

         17  ways that we can really try to target and create

         18  affordability in three-unit properties, without, you

         19  know, a subsidy to three units that are, tend to be

         20  at the much higher end of the spectrum.

         21  So  --

         22                      CHAIRPERSON DILAN:   But, we had

         23  developers testify yesterday on this subject, and

         24  stated that they believe that the construction of

         25  three- family homes would come to a halt because
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          2  ultimately the home buyer would eventually have to

          3  pay more.  Now I agree, some of these prices are a

          4  little bit high, but they are three-family homes and

          5  they do  --  they would have the ability to charge

          6  two rents.  Hopefully, they would charge those rents

          7  at a reasonable rate.  I guess, just the future of

          8  this program, especially since 421-B has expired,

          9  then what other subsidies, or what other, besides

         10  the home-buyer assistance, what other subsidies or

         11  tax, tax breaks, or things such as UDAAP, what else

         12  is there to promote the construction of three-family

         13  homes?  One -, two - and three-family homes?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  As you know,

         15  the main vehicle that we use, besides the down-

         16  payment assistance that I talked about, is a program

         17  called New Foundations, where we've created

         18  literally thousands of units around the City, in

         19  these types of properties.  We also work very

         20  closely with  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  If Carol is here

         22  I approve my new foundation's projects, so that

         23  should help you out.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  We also work

         25  very closely with the Housing Partnership to focus
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          2  on the creation of these types of properties with

          3  theirs, as well.  At times there's a overlap with

          4  our New Foundations Program, but they also have lots

          5  of other of these types of homes that they are

          6  working on, as well. So, there's literally thousand

          7  and thousands of these homes that have been produced

          8  throughout the City, including in your District,

          9  through these programs.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  All right.  At

         11  this point I'm not going to belabor this issue.  I

         12  believe that the construction of these units are in

         13  jeopardy.  I know that in the Bill that myself and

         14  the Speaker have, we were able to get Form 5's back

         15  in. I still believe that there's a place in this

         16  City for the three family home.  I think it's the

         17  first opportunity for home buyers to build up in the

         18  economic ladder, because they are allowed to charge

         19  two rents.

         20                 In some instances, when you buy a

         21  condo, you have to build up all the equity all on

         22  your own.  So, I think it's somewhat of a concern of

         23  mine, and I definitely think that it's an out- of-

         24  Borough issue.  But, I'll continue to explore that

         25  with you guys, off- line.

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 I guess  --  At this time I just want

          3  to follow up --  actually, I won't follow up, I'll

          4  just turn it over to Council Member Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 I want to indicate also that I share

          8  your concern about the three- family homes.  As we

          9  discussed yesterday, of all the development that is

         10  occurring in my District, that would be the one that

         11  my community would welcome, because we are one and

         12  two and three- family homes from one end to the

         13  other.  So, if we're going to encourage the

         14  construction of anything in Canarsie and Sheepshead

         15  Bay, and Marine Park, that is what we should be

         16  encouraging.

         17                 I do want to go back to questions

         18  that I was asking yesterday.  I know that the

         19  Chairman would throw his gavel at me if I went back

         20  to the issue of the relevance of a property tax

         21  reduction to maintaining and promoting  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: The Chair's in a

         23  better mood today, so  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, maybe I

         25  should go for it, but I absolutely do believe that
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          2  in talking about building housing stock that is

          3  affordable to middle class New Yorkers like the ones

          4  that live in Canarsie, one and two- family homes are

          5  most relevant.  And certainly, as we know from your

          6  own diagrams here, banks calculate mortgagability

          7  and what the carrying cost of the house is, and the

          8  property taxes are most relevant in that

          9  calculation.  So, I'll just repeat that because I

         10  think it bears repeating, and because Jimmy is

         11  poking me in the side.

         12                 I want to actually go back though to

         13  the data questions I was asking yesterday because I

         14   --  the anecdotal experience in my Community, is

         15  not consistent with your chart reflecting the

         16  affordability of 81 percent of the 421-A out- of

         17  Borough abatements, you know, that figure.  Because,

         18  what I'm seeing built, are the one- bedroom

         19  condominiums selling for sums that  are already in

         20  excess of your cap, or your, cliff, or whatever

         21  we're calling it.

         22                 So, I'd like to know whether or not

         23  HPD has available the data broken down in a tighter

         24  frame.  Can we see by community District, can we see

         25  by year, whether or not there is the trend that I
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          2  fear there is, toward the condominium at the high

          3  price, getting a 421-A abatement?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That is

          5  something that we can do.  We had not, as of

          6  yesterday, we had done that as you saw, broadly, for

          7  Boroughs.  We have not broken it down by Council

          8  District, and that's something that we can work on.

          9  So, I'd be happy to try and get that to you.  I'm

         10  not sure I can promise it today, but  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I would

         12  suggest Community Board might be the more

         13  appropriate, you know, measure, but, also by year.

         14  I think, if you could show us in that four- year

         15  snapshot whether or not those AVs are trending

         16  significantly upward, you know, we might have a

         17  better idea of what actually is going on in this

         18  market, as opposed to four years ago.  So, if you

         19  can do that, I think that would be very instructive.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Okay.  I'll

         21  see what we can do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  The other

         23  question that I have is  --  you're calling it a

         24  cap, right, not a cliff?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  All right.  I

          3  wanted to make sure I got the right term here.

          4                 Why the figure that you have picked?

          5  Why not $100,000 less than that?  What's the magic

          6  to that number?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  We spent a lot

          8  of time analyzing the data, and the concern that we

          9  had about going lower than that, is, that, again,

         10  because of the variability of the AVs, because of

         11  the differences between the way, because we talked

         12  about earlier, smaller properties assessed versus

         13  larger, properties have been assessed in different

         14  neighborhood, because of rent stabilization and

         15  other things, we were very concerned when we looked

         16  at the information, that if we went below that

         17  $65,000, we would start to really begin to impact

         18  units that were really affordable to the middle

         19  class.  Just to give you that information, when we

         20  looked at assessed values, not right at the $65,000

         21  cap, but from $65,000 up to $80,000 per unit, and

         22  again, this was in the outer Boroughs, fully a half

         23  of all those were selling for less than $500,000.

         24  So, even though the average might be higher than

         25  that, what you see is, you can have enough
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          2  variability that if you go down below $65,000, you

          3  start to really risk impacting the kind of

          4  moderately- priced housing that we were concerned

          5  about.

          6                 Now, again, with a more transparent

          7  assessment process, I think that we could certainly

          8  have a different discussion about where the cap

          9  would be.  But, given the current realities of the

         10  assessment process, which is set in State law, we

         11  had real concerns that as we  --  if we were to

         12  start to go farther down the spectrum in terms of

         13  AVs, we would really begin to hurt those moderately-

         14  priced units.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Then, you

         16  know, maybe this this a totally naive question, but,

         17  then, why not, instead of using assessed value, use

         18  actual sales price?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:   A couple  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  When

         21  someone's applying for a mortgage they will know

         22  what the sales price is.  So, it should --

         23                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  --  Be a

         25  usable figure.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  A couple of

          3  issues with that. First of all, AV is something

          4  that's already tracked and assessed by the City, and

          5  so, it would require no new, kind of administrative

          6  capacity, no new bureaucracy that would need to be

          7  created to track sales prices.

          8                 There also are many, many ways that,

          9  with a benefit that might be as valuable as 421-A,

         10  that they're many ways that the sales price could be

         11  manipulated so that you can get around that -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  But all of

         13  those would be fraud.  So, we go to a closing, there

         14  are transfer documents, you know, that capture all

         15  aspects of consideration in the purchase price.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Let me give you

         17  an example. For  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And, by the

         19  way, I mean finance gets those.  They get the tax,

         20  they get the form  --

         21                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Let me just

         22  give you can example, though  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Why would you

         24  require a new system?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:   For  a co-op
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          2  or condo, there's always a balance between what you

          3  set the sales price at and what the charges  --  the

          4  monthly charges would be.  And if you were anywhere

          5  close to that threshold for sales price, you could

          6  set the sales prices, you know, $50,000 or $100,000

          7  lower, raise the monthly carrying costs, because you

          8  take debt onto the property, and low and behold,

          9  you've now qualified for a 421-A benefit, even

         10  though at the end of the day, the affordability for

         11  the buyer is absolutely no different.

         12                 There are also ways you could sell

         13  units to an affiliated entity, get your 421-A

         14  benefits and then flip the unit at a much higher

         15  value.  None of those, at least from our

         16  perspective, would necessarily be fraud, depending

         17  on how the legislation was written.  But, certainly

         18  things that would require an enormous amount of

         19  administrative capacity to look at.

         20                 From our point of view, since

         21  assessed value, you already are living with assessed

         22  value through the taxes, we felt it was the right

         23  figure to use and administratively far simpler than

         24  trying to create a whole new regulatory structure to

         25  look at sales price.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I guess the

          3  rub, Commissioner, is that, you know, even those of

          4  us who want to continue to use programs like 421-A

          5  to develop, even non- affordable housing in the

          6  City, don't want to be giving away more than we need

          7  to give away to keep  --  you know, to keep the ball

          8  rolling.

          9                 So, perhaps legislation could be

         10  written to plug some of those things, like flipping

         11  the property, or affecting the carrying charges, and

         12  that would be difficult.  But it doesn't seem to be

         13  anywhere near as difficult as fixing the AV problem,

         14  which, you know, I guess is, I mean maybe we should

         15  put the cart before the horse here and fix the AV

         16  problem first so that we can do this in a

         17  transparent, and intelligent, and coherent, and

         18  consistent way.

         19                 So, I guess I can't emphasize enough

         20  that, you know, we can't pass this legislation and

         21  then go back and stick our head in the sand about

         22  the AV problem. Because it's got to be fixed.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  I couldn't

         24  agree more; and in fact, recommendation number six

         25  from the task force was that we aught to go back and
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          2  look at  --  obviously it doesn't  --  it's not just

          3  affecting 421-A, and that wasn't the mission of the

          4  task force, but we aught to go back, and the

          5  administration has started doing that, and looking

          6  at assessed value and how to make the system fairer

          7  and more transparent.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And then

          9  after we do that we can reduce property taxes on

         10  Class 1 homes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Council Member

         12  Jackson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         14  Mr. Chair, and welcome back.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I'm sorry.  And

         16  you'll be followed by Council Member Yassky.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Sure.

         18                 I wanted to touch base on this

         19  proposed $400 million housing trust fund.

         20                 I think you indicated that  --  I'm

         21  sorry, I'm unclear  --  how many units of affordable

         22  housing would this housing trust fund build on a

         23  yearly basis?  And I believe you said this fund

         24  would be there forever, based on, you know, loans

         25  and other stuff like that.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.  Assuming

          3  a return rate of six and a half percent, and an

          4  interest rate of one percent on the subsidies that

          5  were provided, which is generally what HGC already

          6  does, we could spend $50 million in the first three

          7  years and $30 million thereafter, and have the fund

          8  last into perpetuity. What that would mean in terms

          9  of units for the first ten years of the fund, you'd

         10  get 7200 or 7,200 units, over 20 years you'd get

         11  about 13,200 unit. So  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm sorry,

         13  give me those figures again, please.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  7,200 over ten

         15  years, 13,200 units over 20 years.  And, again,

         16  you'd continue to get production at the 600 unit

         17  level after that.  But those are   --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that's

         19  an assumption as far as the normal rate of inflation

         20  for building, or that's just at the current rate?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's exactly

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Which one is

         24  exactly correct?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That it has an
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          2  increase built into it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Escalation,

          4  built in there.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And so with

          7  this fund, as proposed, I believe that's in, is it

          8  Intro. 486, I believe the number is?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's

         10  correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBERS JACKSON:  That's an

         12  assumption that the certificate program would be

         13  eliminated.  Is that correct?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:   That's

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Because

         17  under the certificate program, I think you mentioned

         18  statistically, how many housing units were built

         19  under the certificate program on a yearly basis or

         20  in total?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  On average

         22  it's been in the range of 300- 350 units.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Per year?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Per year.

         25  That's right.  So this would roughly double the
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          2  annual production of units.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And, so the

          4  units that you're talking about that would double

          5  what the certificate program has produced, would be

          6  outside of the exclusion zone?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's

          8  correct.  They would be targeted to areas outside of

          9  the exclusion zone; and even  -- so it would only be

         10  available outside the exclusion zone.  Beyond that,

         11  it would be targeted to the 15 sub- borough areas

         12  that have the highest poverty rates according to

         13  Housing Vacancy Survey.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In Northern

         15  Manhattan where I represent, is all part of that

         16  high- poverty area, is that correct?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's

         18  correct.  You can see on this map here, these

         19  hatched areas, the South Bronx, Northern Manhattan,

         20  East Harlem, much of Central Brooklyn, and a number

         21  of other areas, Coney Island, et cetera, and

         22  Brooklyn are all covered.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Only under

         24  the assumption if there are new housing

         25  developments.  If there's no land to build any,
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          2  unless they tear down and building and build a new

          3  house then

          4  there is no land, is that correct:

          5                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: That's correct.

          6    We would need to be able to find sites, but, as

          7  you know, the City has been able to  --  we have a

          8  very, very large housing program, and been able to

          9  find sites for those developments.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Does this

         11  fund have any impact on the AMI that people are

         12  talking about under the Speaker's Bill, Eric Martin

         13  Dilan's Bill, is 80 percent AMI.  Is that correct?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What if, in

         17  fact, what would be the  --  what would be the

         18  effect of having included, assuming that that Bill

         19  contained a 60 percent AMI, or a 50 percent AMI, can

         20  you cost that out?  What would you, in your opinion

         21  as a Commissioner, what impact would that have, if

         22  any?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Well,

         24  currently, the large majority of all the units that

         25  are produced under the 80/20 program, are affordable
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          2  to 50 or 60 percent of median.  So even under the

          3  current 421-A restrictions, with an 80 percent of

          4  median, the vast majority come in at 50 or 60

          5  percent, because that's what the 80/20 program

          6  targets.  That's what the Federal benefits are

          7  available for.

          8                 So, in fact, I think it's fair to say

          9  that the impact of doing that would be relatively

         10  limited.  You'd still get lots of units at 50 and 60

         11  percent of median.  I think the concern would be

         12  that we do have some number, not a large number, but

         13  some number of units that come in under inclusionary

         14  and under 421- a, that target that group between 60

         15  and 80 percent of median.  And I would be concerned

         16  about losing the flexibility to be able to serve

         17  that population, as well; because, frankly, there

         18  aren't many programs that are available to that

         19  group between 60 and 80 percent of median.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that

         21  group you're talking about are families that earn

         22  between 60 percent and 80 percent is from about

         23  $42,000 to about what, 63, something like that, give

         24  or take.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  You know the
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          2  numbers well. Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Well,

          4  I'm concerned about that group, also.  But, I think

          5  the concern that, I guess, that my constituents have

          6  in general would be that you  --  when I say you,

          7  not you specifically, but you only would be

          8  targeting those individuals with the highest AMI and

          9  not the lowest AMI of 50 percent of the AMI, which

         10  is about a family of four for about $37,000.

         11                 So, can you express your viewpoint on

         12  the concern that people would raise in that respect?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.  I'd be

         14  happy to do that.

         15                 In fact, because of the way that the

         16  80/20 program works, and the fact that low- income

         17  housing tax credits and tax- exempt bonds are only

         18  available if you're serving below 50 or 60 percent

         19  of median, I think leaving the AMI at 80 percent,

         20  the way that it currently is in the law, we still

         21  are going to get a very large number of units that

         22  are available to the people that you're trying to

         23  target.  So  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Because the

         25  developers are going to go after that Federal money.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  They're going

          3  to go after the 80/20.  Exactly.  That's what

          4  they've been primarily  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:   And so by

          6  staying at  -- by coming in at the 80 percent AMI,

          7  as you indicated, your helping those group of

          8  families that earn between the $42,000 and

          9  approximately $62,- $63,000 price range.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Your helping

         11  some of them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Some of

         13  them.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Still, the

         15  majority of the money is going to go to people below

         16  that.  The large majority of the money, because of

         17  the way the Federal programs work.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, the

         19  last panel, and you weren't here, but maybe a

         20  representative of your Agency was here, but if no

         21  one was here, let me just tell you, the last panel,

         22  the last speaker, was about 5:30 last night.  It was

         23  an individual, and he said he was here  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I hate to

         25  interrupt, but it was a little bit later Council
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          2  Member.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It was a

          4  little later than that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: A little bit

          6  later, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I though it

          8  was about  -- but, whatever you say.  I was here

          9  until the end.

         10                 He basically said, he said, "I sat

         11  here all day, I attended the press conference in the

         12  morning, and I heard the Commissioner and the

         13  developers, you know, say what they had to say", and

         14  he listened to all of the questions and what have

         15  you, and he said "The bottom line is, I don't

         16  believe them".  He said, "I don't believe them", and

         17  he believes that 70/30 is the minimum, and there's

         18  people out there saying it should be, not 70/30, but

         19  60/40 or 50/50.  My communication with him was, but

         20  you heard what the develop said as far as, that, you

         21  know that people will put in their housing permits

         22  and you may see continuation of housing for the next

         23  year and a half, but all of a sudden you see it dry

         24  up and there would not be the affordable housing

         25  that we desire.
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          2                 And in essence, as a member of the

          3  City Council, I am evaluating all of this, I am

          4  listening to the testimony, assuming everyone is

          5  telling the truth, and asking for statistical

          6  information so I can analyze, so I can make the

          7  right decision based on the constituents that I

          8  represent, where the average family earns $34,000 a

          9  year.

         10                 What can you do, or what can you say,

         11  to dispel the fact that in his mind, and in other

         12  people's minds, that regardless of what you are

         13  saying, that they don't believe you?  Why is it a

         14  fact, that in your opinion, if you have an opinion

         15  at all, that people that have sat here all day

         16  yesterday and listened to the testimony, still do

         17  not believe that either you or the developers are

         18  telling the truth about this particular matter?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's a tough

         20  questions to answer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  If you can.

         22  I'm not saying you have to have an answer, believe

         23  me.  I'm not demanding an answer, but if you have

         24  any insight or thought about it.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Well, I guess
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          2  the first thing I'd say is, I hope we've worked well

          3  enough together with the Council that you would

          4  believe I wouldn't come before you and testify and

          5  say things that I don't believe to be true.

          6                 But, you know, at the end of the day,

          7  I think to go to your questions about why people

          8  would believe that, we're talking about real estate

          9  finance, and I think for a lot of people who look

         10  from the outside and don't work in real estate

         11  finance, it's hard to believe that, you know, with

         12  the strength of the market here today in New York

         13  City, that, you know, you can't make money no matter

         14  what we do, that there's always going to be money to

         15  made in real estate.

         16                 In some ways it's easy to forget the

         17  recent past, at times, and I grew up in New York

         18  City, I remember when we were talking about being

         19  able  --  nobody being able to build in New York

         20  because there wasn't a strong enough market.  And

         21  the concern is, even though we have a relatively

         22  strong market today, we're beginning to see the

         23  market turn already, prices have started to decline

         24  in a number of neighborhoods throughout the City.

         25                 I do think we've got to make policy
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          2  for the future of the City in a way that recognizes

          3  that there are real estate cycles, and that the

          4  City, we're blessed now with the growing population,

          5  but we can't do things, even though it's hard to

          6  believe or to remember a time when the market wasn't

          7  strong, that, in fact, that's happened, and we have

          8  to take into account a balanced policy that doesn't

          9  sort of eliminate the possibility for moderately-

         10  priced housing to be built.

         11                 To be more specific to your questions

         12  about the analysis, I did show yesterday, this

         13  chart, which  --  and I'd be happy to share the

         14  detail behind it, which shows the financial analysis

         15  of taking a property in one of the areas where we're

         16  expanding the exclusion zone, and raising the

         17  requirement to 30 percent affordability, and what is

         18  shows is that the returns drop enough that the

         19  developer wouldn't choose to do that.  But, again,

         20  I'd use  --  I'd say don't believe me, look at the

         21  history here.

         22                 In the last few years, in Manhattan,

         23  there have been very few 80/20's built, in part

         24  because of the certificate program being available,

         25  but also because rentals were relatively
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          2  unattractive compared to condominiums.

          3                 And, so, even assuming that we bring

          4  that into more balance by eliminating the

          5  certificate program, just look at the fact that

          6  people haven't been building 80/20s.  And if we

          7  raise the requirement to 70/30, it's going to make

          8  it all the more likely that they wouldn't choose

          9  this option and build it.

         10                 So, from that point of view, you

         11  know, you can believe the numbers or not, but, look

         12  at the recent history.  In fact, people haven't been

         13  using the 80/20 because other options have been more

         14  attractive.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, from a

         16  factual point of view, if they haven't really  --

         17  developers have not really taken advantage of the

         18  80/20, then, as you said, common sense would say

         19  that they're not going to take advantage of the

         20  70/30.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  They'd be even

         22  less likely.             Again, I'm hopeful, with

         23  the changes in the Bill, that we can start to get

         24  many more developers doing 80/20.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But that's
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          2  in Manhattan. What about outside of Manhattan?

          3  Because there's discussion of, okay, you're talking

          4  about Manhattan, but what about outside of

          5  Manhattan?  There may be areas that 7/30 (sic) is

          6  doable.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Well, it  --

          8  where the market is less strong, it's even less

          9  likely that 70/30 is going to work.  We've done, in

         10  recent years, the very first 80/20s ever outside of

         11  the Borough of Manhattan.  So, the market  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is it on

         13  private land or public land?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  There was

         15  certainly at least one on private land that I am

         16  aware of.

         17                 So, I think the market's just getting

         18  strong enough, and that's a good reason why the

         19  proposal to expand the exclusion zone to those areas

         20  makes sense, because the market is now strong

         21  enough.  But, if it doesn't work in Manhattan, it

         22  certainly wouldn't work in other areas.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  My

         24  final question is that you talked about the proposed

         25  $400 million housing fund, and how much  --  how
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          2  many affordable units within the first 10 years and

          3  20 years.  Assuming if that fund was $600 million,

          4  how many units could be built with the $600 million

          5  numbers  --  do you have any estimate on that?

          6                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Just doing

          7  some quick math off of my figures here, you'd

          8  probably get about 10,000 units, a little over

          9  10,000 units in the first 10 years  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Maybe about

         11  20?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  --  And you'd

         13  probably get  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: 22  --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  --  In the

         16  neighborhood of 20   --  probably not.  More like

         17  17,000, in 20 years.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And of the

         19  entire time, you're say the average under the

         20  certificate program, and that's been in place since,

         21  when was that 1982 or before that, the certificate

         22  program?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  The first

         24  units were produced in 1988.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  88?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How many in

          4  total under the certificate program, if you have the

          5  statistics there, were built?

          6                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  The average

          7  spending over the life of the program is about $18

          8  million.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In the

         10  certificate program?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  In the

         12  certificate program.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In the life

         14  of the program?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that's

         16  since the first units were built in 1988?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's

         18  correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How many

         20  units total have been built in the life of the

         21  program?  Give or take, I won't hold you to a hard

         22  number, but if you have a guesstimate that would be

         23  good.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Okay, I think

         25  we have it.  If I could just get back to you in a
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          2  moment about that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Sure.  Okay.

          4                 With that, Mr. Chair, I am finished,

          5  I'm just  -- want to hear the answer.

          6                 CHAIR PERSON DILAN: Okay.  What we'll

          7  do is, we'll move to Council Member Yassky, and then

          8  when you have the

          9  answer,  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  --  You can jump

         12  in and give Council Member Jackson his answer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Or give us,

         14  all of us the answer.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I'm interested as

         16  well, but it was your question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         18  Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Council Member

         20  Yassky.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I'm sorry.

         24  Council Member Yassky will be the last Member to

         25  question the panel, and then at that point we will

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  get to the public testimony.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you.

          4                 Good afternoon again, Commissioner.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Afternoon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  I'm glad we

          7  have time for more leisurely conversations.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  As am I.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  We don't have

         10  to be as rushed.

         11                 I just have two things that I want to

         12  add.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  You just amused

         14  yourself there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Just hearing

         16  you, Commissioner, talk about, you know, development

         17  cycles, to me that's a big part, honestly, of what

         18  shapes my kind of view of this issue, is having seen

         19  just in the District I represent, the astounding

         20  change in the last few years, cautions me that when

         21  we're kind of drawing lines and setting boundaries,

         22  it's not just for today, but it's based on  --  we

         23  have to kind of plan for three, four, five years

         24  from now.  And I understand that there's a

         25  Commission that's set up to update things, but, I
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          2  also think that the kind of political reality is,

          3  it's hard to get the momentum to actually change a

          4  program as important, that so many people care

          5  about, as this one.

          6                 And, when you have your opportunity,

          7  you should do it in a way that, you know, you are

          8  planning for the future and don't assume that you're

          9  going to be able to go back in and fine tune, you

         10  know 18 months down the road.  And, the reason that

         11  I've felt strongly that the boundaries are too

         12  limited in the proposal that the Administration put

         13  forward, is, thinking, you know, nobody thought that

         14  Green Point and Williamsburg would have the

         15  development activity they do today, some years back,

         16  you know, not too many years back.  And so, if we

         17  want to make sure that we're not kind of caught

         18  unawares, and by the next wave of development, we

         19  have to plan for that future.  That's just the kind

         20  of overall viewpoint, honestly, that is as much

         21  anything drives the position I've taken.

         22                 That's not a questions, but I can  --

         23    please feel free to comment on that and then I

         24  have a genuine question.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Sure.
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          2                 First of all, just to go back to

          3  Councilmen Jackson's question, 5,445 units total in

          4  the life of the certificate program.  45, that's

          5  correct.

          6                 I guess, just three comments I would

          7  make about that.

          8                 First of all, the Administration

          9  believes the suggestion of the Council to create

         10  this Commission to review the boundaries every two

         11  years, is a terrific idea.  I understand your point

         12  about political will.  I have no doubt, based on our

         13  work with the Council, that, if you believe it's the

         14  right thing to do, and the Administration believes

         15  it, that we will have the political will to make

         16  those changes.  And, I would actually say, what is

         17  interested about this is that, in fact, just in the

         18  last couple years, working together with the

         19  Council, as you know, with your help, we made

         20  changes to the 421-A program.  And in fact, I have

         21  said a number of times in the testimony, that we

         22  believe when you go in to do rezonings, that that is

         23  a good time to take stock and look at those areas

         24  for addition to the exclusion zone or other changes,

         25  as well.
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          2                 So, I believe we not just saying it

          3  through a Commission, and setting that up, but in

          4  fact, through a demonstrated commitment to making

          5  changes in the flexibility of this program, that, in

          6  fact, we will continue to do that even outside of a

          7  wholesale review of 421-A and the boundaries, and

          8  obviously you're pushing us and you're interest in

          9  the exclusion zone when we did the Green Point-

         10  Williamsburg rezoning, is a perfect example of that.

         11                 Having said that, and I certainly

         12  understand this sort of taking a long- sided view,

         13  our fundamental argument is that there is a downside

         14  to going to far, as well, that in this current

         15  market where we have a significant shortage of

         16  housing, where 421-A has been producing a large

         17  amount of housing affordable to low and moderate-

         18  income people, that the risk of going too far, is

         19  that we will limit the production of that low and

         20  moderately- priced housing.  And that, in fact, the

         21  result of that is going to be worsening the

         22  affordable housing problem, because as the

         23  population continues to grow, if we cut off

         24  production of that kind of housing, we will end up

         25  exacerbating that shortage and worsening the
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          2  problem.

          3                 So, I appreciate your point about

          4  looking to the future, but we also have to balance

          5  that against real, immediate consequences of going

          6  too far.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  My second

          8  question, has to do with the assessment process.  I

          9  know that that's not the responsibility of HPD, but

         10  the responsibility of the Department of Finance, but

         11  it was  --  it comes up here because once, you know,

         12  there's going to be a cap of some value on the

         13  amount of a Department that's subject to exemption,

         14  it's  --  that has  --  the discussion about that

         15  has had a number of people, constituents, kind of

         16  contact my office to point out their belief that

         17  assessments often don't reflect market value and

         18  they believe are too high.  And I think that his can

         19  happen in areas where there's been rapid, kind of

         20  change, because a new building goes up and it sells

         21  for shocking prices, and then other things get

         22  valued at that same level, even though their market

         23  value is not in truth, commensurate.

         24                 And, what I would like is, I don't

         25   --  again I know this is not your Department, but
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          2  since you're here representing the Administration, I

          3  would just like to ask for the opportunity to

          4  follow- up, whether it's Finance Department or

          5  wherever it is the Administration would think it's

          6  appropriate, to look at, particularly in the

          7  northern part of the District I represent, areas

          8  where that appears to be true and could be

          9  problematic for owners under the system.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Look, this

         11  issue is a much larger issue than 421-A, as you

         12  point out, and by no means is it my expertise, but

         13  if there  --  we heard a very consistent response

         14  from the Task Force that this is a problem that we

         15  need to take a broader look at.  And the

         16  Administration has begun looking at it. I think the

         17  IBO report that we in the New York Times, front page

         18  of the Metro Section last week, is a very good

         19  example of the kind of disparities that we're

         20  talking about, that really cut across income levels,

         21  property types, and it is something worth examining

         22  beyond 421-A.  And frankly, I think it would make

         23  your point about, is there a way to, you know, think

         24  about something other than a cap. It would be

         25  possible if there were a more fair assessment
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          2  process, and that's something I think we're thinking

          3  about.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  I'm sorry,

          5  just as a follow up, because I'm remembering, that

          6  what one person suggests to me, I'm curious for your

          7  response, is for the Legislation dealing with the

          8  cap, to set it to sale price in a recently sold

          9  apartment, rather than to market value, rather than

         10  to the assessed, you know, the Department of Finance

         11  estimate of market value.  Do you have an opinion on

         12  that, or could you look at that and see if,

         13  literally specifying that if an apartment's been

         14  sold in the last whatever, 12 months, 18 months,

         15  that that's the market value.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's the

         17  market value for purposes of assessment?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Yes.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Yes.  That is

         20  not allowed by State law.  In fact, and this is one

         21  of the ironies, that when you look at co- ops and

         22  condos, particularly in some of the highest value

         23  areas, State law requires that you look at rent  --

         24  you look at comparable rental units, to be able to

         25  establish the market value, and in fact, in lots of
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          2  these areas where they're high values, they're also

          3  lots of older buildings that are rent stabilized,

          4  and that artificially deflates the assessment of

          5  many of those properties in the highest value areas.

          6                 So, that's one of the central issues

          7  that's contained in State law, and the Law

          8  Department has confirmed that numerous times.

          9  Again, I'm not the expert on it, but I do know

         10  enough from these discussions with the Task Force

         11  from Martha Stark, that that's one of the central

         12  issues.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well, maybe

         14  that's something that can be addressed then in the

         15  second phase of this as it goes to the State.

         16                 Thank you Commissioner.  Thank you

         17  Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIR PERSON DILAN:  Thank you.  And

         19  then I'm going to allow one question for Council

         20  Member James, but the Administration does have to

         21  leave after Council Member James.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you Mr.

         23  Chair, and I will be just one question.

         24                 The question is, first, again, I want

         25  to thank you. 70 percent of the District is included
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          2  and my District is included in the exclusion area,

          3  it leaves out Crown Heights, and below Myrtle

          4  Avenue.  And the questions that I have, looking at

          5  the fund, which yesterday I indicated was, I though

          6  inadequate, I think that we should really increase

          7  the fund from $400 million, so that we can really

          8  meet the demands of the City, I recognize is that

          9  it's primarily targeted to the 15 poorest

         10  neighborhoods in the City. Crown Heights does not

         11  meet that definition.  In fact, Crown Heights is in

         12  the second tier of moderate- income neighborhoods,

         13  and so my concern is, is that Crown Heights and

         14  other communities that fit the description of Crown

         15  Heights, will not benefit from this housing trust

         16  fund.

         17                 You know, the market forces have

         18  raised the cost of property throughout the City of

         19  New York, and in Crown Heights, but the force  --

         20  the force of gentrification has affected Crown

         21  Heights in a less sense, in a lesser degree than in

         22  the rest of my District.  So, my concern is, how can

         23  the trust fund include communities such as Crown

         24  Heights, that are not defined as the 15 poorest

         25  neighborhoods in the City?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Just to be

          3  clear, the trust fund is available anywhere outside

          4  of the exclusion zones.  So, there would be a

          5  targeting within that money towards these 15 areas,

          6  but that certainly doesn't mean that there wouldn't

          7  be funding available for the other areas.  We're

          8  still, you know, trying to go through the details of

          9  exactly how that targeting works, but I think the

         10  recent number that's been proposed by the Council is

         11  about 55 percent of the overall money would be

         12  targeted to those 15 areas.  That does leave roughly

         13  $200 million available for other parts of the City

         14  that are not in the exclusion zone.

         15                 I would also point out, as you know,

         16  that we have a very large affordable housing plan.

         17  The new housing market place plan I mentioned

         18  earlier that 421-A reform would provide about $300

         19  million in additional funding, besides the fund,

         20  toward the housing plan.  So, there are lots of

         21  other resources that are available for Crown

         22  Heights, as well.  And, as you know, our door is

         23  always open should you have a particular project or

         24  location or are aware of any opportunity for funding

         25  that we could bring to the table to do that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIR PERSON DILAN:  Thank you

          4  Council Member James.

          5                 I am going to allow, and this is the

          6  last allowance, Hiram, Council Member Monserrate one

          7  question, and that's only because  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  -- He as miffed

         11  at me yesterday,  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  --  And I hope to

         15  get a cup of coffee soon.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MONSERRATE:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman.

         18                 Commissioner, I want to take full

         19  blame for the fact that you're being compelled to

         20  answer one more question.  It's not the Chairman's

         21  fault, it was really at my insistence.

         22                 So, really, the first point is in

         23  clarity, and then I'm going to have the question.

         24  You testified before  --

         25                 CHAIR PERSON DILAN:  Make it quick.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  -- Yes,

          3  about the NPP  --  the time clock is going  --  NPP

          4  and REMIC, so that we're clear, the new legislation

          5  would provide that benefit, the 15 or the 25 year

          6  affordable, to the entire Borough of Queens, to

          7  everything outside of the exclusion zone, is that

          8  correct?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That is

         10  correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.

         12  Whether they were formally in the REMIC and NPP, or

         13  not?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  That's exactly

         15  right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.  So

         17  that's the point of clarity.

         18                 So the question that I have is the

         19  following.  I know that we have exhausted the debate

         20  about the exclusion zone and the fact that in the

         21  exclusion zone they would have to do, as of right

         22  now, at least 80/20, right?  In an area, let's say

         23  my part of Queens, mine and my colleagues, Council

         24  Member Helen Sears, where the market is extremely

         25  hot, we have the highest percentage of 421
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          2  applications, why would it be necessary to give the

          3  developers a 25 year abatement to create the

          4  affordable housing, as opposed to not just doing a

          5  15 year abatement?  As we are doing within the

          6  boundaries of the exclusion zone?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:   In the

          8  exclusion zone, we actually do provide the extended

          9  benefit, as well.  So, in other words, in the

         10  exclusion zone, take for example, the areas in

         11  Brooklyn and in Northern Manhattan, that are being

         12  proposed to add, in those areas you get a 25- year

         13  benefit for affordable housing. So, that's no

         14  different, and, in fact, I would argue that if you

         15  need that extended benefit, which I believe you do

         16  in those areas, to create affordable housing, and to

         17  have a long- term requirement that it be affordable.

         18    We've heard from the Council an interest in

         19  extending the length of time, and so having a 25

         20  year benefit allows you to get relatively long

         21  periods of affordability, that 25 years.  I would

         22  argue that in markets where, like your District,

         23  where the market is not as strong as the areas that

         24  are being proposed to add to the exclusion zone, if

         25  the 25- year benefit is available in those exclusion
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          2  zones, then we certainly should make it available to

          3  incentivise affordable housing in your District, as

          4  well.  So, it is consistent with those other areas.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  The

          6  actual argument I was making was the opposite.  That

          7  in that part of Queens, the market is, I think

          8  probably the hottest market in the Borough, is a lot

          9  of development and a lot of sales and rentals and so

         10  forth. Why would we need to provide this additional

         11  incentive, in that particular part of Queens to get

         12  them to develop affordable.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Again, based

         14  on all the information that we've looked at, the

         15  average sales prices and rents in your District are

         16  significantly lower  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Yes.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  --  Than what

         19  we're seeing in all of these areas that were added

         20  to the exclusion zone.  So I'm not sure I would

         21  agree that if the definition of hot market is the

         22  height of the sales prices and the rents, I wouldn't

         23  agree that your District is hotter than the areas

         24  that we're talking about as being additions to the

         25  exclusion zone.  I would argue that it's the
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          2  reverse; and that, in fact, you need the 25- year

          3  benefits in your District to be able to create that

          4  affordable housing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you very

          6  much Council Member Monserrate.

          7                 Thank you very much Commissioner.

          8                 I think Council Member Felder has a

          9  question.  Do you have a  --  I don't think have a

         10   --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I have few

         12  questions,

         13  yes  --  I have a few questions, but in deference to

         14  the Chair and the fact that I just walked in, I will

         15  withhold my questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         18  Council Member Felder, because I was ready to ask

         19  for another question after the next round.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  That was the

         21  only reason I asked, Hiram, because you got an

         22  exception.

         23                 CHAIR PERSON DILAN:  Thank you

         24  Commissioner.  We certainly appreciate you

         25  accommodate the second day of questioning. We
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          2  appreciate that very much.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  I very much

          4  appreciate your interest in the subject, having

          5  spent five hours with the Committee

          6  over yesterday and today, it's always a pleasure to

          7  work with you and to have a back and forth on these

          8  ideas.  It's a very, very important subject, and I

          9  look forward to the  --  over the next couple of

         10  weeks, continuing the discussion.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Just keep in mind

         12  my three family homes, it's a nice out- of- Borough

         13  issue that I care about very much.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  We hear you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  And I got a

         16  second from Leroy Comrie, so.  Thank you.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  The next

         19  panel will consist of two individuals.  We have Mr.

         20  Steve McInnis from the District Council of

         21  Carpenters, and Mr. Paul Fernandes from Building

         22  Construction and Trades.  They will be followed by

         23  Rabbi David Niederman, Mr. Allan Lebovits, and Mr.

         24  Carl Caller.  That will be the next panel.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Just going to
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          2  allow one second for him to remove the mike and for

          3  the Chambers to come to order. Then you can begin.

          4                 Okay gentlemen, you can begin.  You

          5  can begin in any order you'd like.  Just please,

          6  just make sure you identify yourselves for the

          7  record.

          8                 MR. FERNANDES:  Good morning Mr.  --

          9     Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and Members of the

         10  Committee.

         11                 My name is Paul Fernandes.  I serve

         12  as Chief of Staff for the Building and Construction

         13  Trades Council.

         14                 I am here to testify on Introductions

         15  486 and 490.

         16                 It is important that the Council, in

         17  considering these proposals, be fully aware of the

         18  construction market trends in New York City, as

         19  these conditions bear significantly on the degree to

         20  which goals sought by the Proposals, as well as

         21  goals regarding other public policy concerns, can be

         22  achieved.

         23                 Construction spending in New York

         24  City increased from almost $16 billion in 2001 to

         25  nearly $19 billion in 2005. Yet, during the same
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          2  period of time, construction jobs fell by 8,000, and

          3  total wages actually dropped from $6.5 billion to

          4  $6.4 billion.  The circumstance has occurred as

          5  unionized workers have made gains at the bargaining

          6  table, but experienced diminishing employment on

          7  residential projects.  The diminishing presence of

          8  union labor and, therefore, training and safety

          9  protocols on residential projects, has contributed

         10  to a high number of serious accidents and fatalities

         11  on residential projects, and a disproportionate

         12  number of these accidents and fatalities injuring

         13  and killing poor, minority, and immigrant workers.

         14                 In fact, according to the Department

         15  of Buildings, 23 of the 29 construction fatalities

         16  in New York City, from May of 2004 through November

         17  of 2006, occurred on residential projects, despite

         18  the fact that residential projects only account for

         19  a quarter of the construction market.

         20                 This and other evidence indicates

         21  that too much construction, particularly in the

         22  residential sectors, is irresponsibly mitigating

         23  against land, material, and other costs pressures,

         24  by slashing wages, and safety, and health standards.

         25                 The first matter in our review for
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          2  the Council to consider in addressing this issue, is

          3  how to strike a proper balance between assuring that

          4  additional constraints on incentives to build

          5  market- rate and affordable housing, do not have the

          6  unintended affect of slowing growth, or resulting in

          7  declines.

          8                 It is our judgment that the Council,

          9  through Intro. 486 is at least moving in the right

         10  direction in this regard, save particularly for its

         11  requirement that affordable units must be built on

         12  the same site as market- rate units, even in

         13  exclusion areas outside the most lucrative parts of

         14  Manhattan.

         15                 In contrast, Intro. 490 is far more

         16  likely to risk damaging the overall housing market

         17  in ways that could yield negative outcomes for

         18  developer, buyers, renters, and workers.

         19                 The second matter for the Council to

         20  consider is to assure that its effort to subsidize

         21  and stimulate the construction of housing, it acts

         22  responsibly to eliminate substandard conditions of

         23  employment that are far too prevalent in residential

         24  sector.  It appears that neither supporters of

         25  Intro. 486, nor 490, have considered this matter.
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          2                 Through the Mayor's Commission on

          3  Construction Opportunity, the unionized sector has

          4  committed to expand employment and training for at-

          5  risk and disadvantaged populations. Initiatives of

          6  this kind cannot succeed, however, if enormous

          7  amounts of work are effectively off- limits to these

          8  populations when they become a union members.

          9                 As much as we would like to support

         10  Intro. 486, because it represents a better approach

         11  than Intro. 490 to the hard economics of housing

         12  production, we cannot support it in its current

         13  form, because it also advocates for affordable

         14  housing in a manner which benefits one class of

         15  disadvantaged housing consumers, at the expense of

         16  another, arguably, more disadvantaged and exploited

         17  class of workers.

         18                 We believe Intro. 486 can be modified

         19  to represent the best interests of low and middle-

         20  income New Yorkers, as both consumers and workers.

         21  We urge supporters of this Legislation and other

         22  Council Members to join with us in working to modify

         23  this Legislation, so that economic development and

         24  labor protections consistently supported by the

         25  Council can, in fact, be realized. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          3                 MR. MCINNIS:  I have handed in

          4  written testimony, but I'd like just to speak on

          5  behalf  --  My name is Steve McInnis. I'm the

          6  Political Director of the New York City District

          7  Council of Carpenters, 11 locals and 26,000 members.

          8                 I've had these discussions with

          9  numerous Members of the Committee and the Council;

         10  and what we feel here is a missed opportunity to

         11  address what we see is, you know, a focus based

         12  upon, you know, putting together financing and then

         13  handing off the keys to homeowners or renters down

         14  the road, where in between is what we see as the

         15  construction piece where from interviewing the

         16  workers and the contractors out there, we found is

         17  that the most disadvantaged work force is being

         18  abused

         19                 We're generally here, or dealing with

         20  the Council and legislating for projects that we

         21  know will create jobs for our members.  What we've

         22  seen with the current practices under HPD and the

         23  various developers that are involved in the

         24  affordable housing market, is a total disregard and

         25  lack of respect for the workforce that's currently
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          2  there.  You know, in interviewing in our

          3  organization, its been over 120 workers on 30

          4  various jobsites, we found workers not dealing with

          5  the union wage, not dealing with the prevailing

          6  wage, but a lot of times having trouble making

          7  minimum wage, and getting paid on these projects.

          8  And we felt that the 421-A financing and these large

          9  scale tax breaks for these said developers, with

         10  that should be a certain responsibility to the

         11  workforce that's providing the housing in that.

         12                 So, that's the crux of our argument

         13  here.  We know that there has to be 421-A as a, you

         14  know, as a break to spur development, but, we feel

         15  that there is a responsibility out there and at the

         16  Council and at the various levels of Government.

         17  And we have, in trying to address that, dealt with

         18  Commissioner Donovan and HPD, and we have opened up

         19  dialogue there, but, we feel that the Council, when

         20  putting forward said Legislation, to take that into

         21  effect, and also whether it legislatively or through

         22  oversight, question them and the developers on their

         23  standard practices.  Because we've done the

         24  homework, we've met with the developers, we've met

         25  with the agency, and we've met with the workforce
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          2  out there, and we feel that there's a big hole in

          3  this Legislation as is currently written.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          6                 I just want to ask Mr. Fernandes just

          7  to clarify something.

          8                 You asked for modification, but I'm

          9  not exactly sure of what it is that you're looking

         10  for.  Could you maybe just explain it in a little

         11  better detail for me?

         12                 MR. FERNANDES:  Sure.  Excuse me.

         13                 The problem with us not being able to

         14  provide recommendations is that we were not included

         15  in the process either of the Task Force that came up

         16  with the initial recommendations, which had no labor

         17  representation at all, and that we've not been

         18  included in the process that was used to produce

         19  either pieces of Legislation.

         20                 The reality is that we understand

         21  that there are pretty difficult economics affecting

         22  the construction of affordable housing in New York

         23  City, there are also, however, especially with

         24  421-A, where there's significant amounts of market-

         25  rate housing involved, projects that can certainly,
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          2  under the market, bear the cost of union labor.

          3  There aught to be frank, and we admit, projects on

          4  the smaller side of the scale, with more affordable

          5  housing that do not so easily accommodate our union

          6  wage rates. The problem is, that under 421-A today,

          7  and in fact, most affordable housing subsidies, the

          8  only wage protection, whatsoever, that exists, is

          9  the minimum wage.  That, even in itself, is

         10  frequently not paid.  People are paid off the books,

         11  and we don't have any ability to compete, which

         12  means that at the same time we're being asked to

         13  provide employment opportunities for historically

         14  disadvantaged communities and people that did not

         15  always have fair access to unions, that we're not

         16  being given a fair chance to put these people to

         17  work on these projects.  So, we would suggest

         18  working with the Council to figure out what the

         19  appropriate standards are.

         20                 I think the second thing is, that

         21  when you look at residential construction, there's

         22  an enormous amount of accidents and fatalities

         23  occurring, almost all of which are affecting

         24  minority communities, new immigrant communities, and

         25  the poor.  And almost all of which are also non-
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          2  union.

          3                 Now, residential construction is

          4  cited in the testimony as about one- quarter of the

          5  construction dollars in the City, but 80 percent of

          6  the fatalities; and that's just absurd, and that is

          7  indicative of the fact that there are no standards

          8  affecting how people get subsidies, and what

          9  standards they're held to, both in terms of

         10  workforce protections, economically, and also for

         11  safety and heath.

         12                 You could put requirements that some

         13  of these contractors and developers getting tax

         14  breaks on particulary large projects, that have

         15  relatively stronger market- rate characteristics,

         16  particularly in the exclusion zone, be required to

         17  have apprenticeship training programs so that at a

         18  minimum, the workforce, we know for a fact would be

         19  trained and skilled, if for nothing else, but to

         20  protect itself against the hazards of the industry

         21  that are prevalent in New York City where

         22  construction is very complicated and often involves

         23  heights.  Heights account for more than half of all

         24  construction accidents and fatalities.

         25                 Right now we're giving away billions
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          2  of dollars of tax breaks, not just with 421-A, but

          3  with other programs, as well, and other public

          4  subsidies, and nothing  --  there's no strings

          5  attached that do anything to protect the workforce.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  So, it's

          7  just sort of like a general objection on process,

          8  and, I guess, there's a lot of specific things you'd

          9  like to work out if someone would have contacted you

         10  then, I guess.

         11                 MR. FERNANDES: Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.

         13                 Do any of my colleagues have a

         14  question for this panel?

         15                 Council Member Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         17  afternoon.

         18                 So, what I'm hearing, basically, what

         19  you're saying, is that because one- quarter of the

         20  construction in New York City is residential and

         21  three-quarters is commercial, and what have you,

         22  that as far as the workers that you represent,

         23  overall, that when you look at the four Bills that

         24  we have, and I think you mention only two of them.

         25  Is that correct?
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          2                 MR. FERNANDES:  That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          4                 Are you in favor of 486, or you have,

          5  of the two, you prefer that one?  I'm just asking.

          6                 MR. FERNANDES:  Sure.  We're opposed

          7  to both Bills. We are more inclined to be supportive

          8  of 486, if it would address some of the concerns

          9  that we've raised.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

         11                 MR. FERNANDES:  We don't believe  --

         12  I don't believe, I'll speak for myself, the Building

         13  and Construction Trades Council doesn't believe that

         14  490 -  we actually believe, would have the

         15  unintended affect, as much as it may be well

         16  intentioned, we believe that the 30 percent

         17  affordability requirement and the 50 percent AMI

         18  requirement, could actually have the affect of

         19  decreasing the amount of housing production that

         20  occurs in the City.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Over all, or

         22  just affordable housing?

         23                 MR. FERNANDES:  We believe it could

         24  actually affect a decrease in market- rate housing

         25  construction.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How is that,

          3  if, in fact, a developer doesn't have to go after a

          4  421-A tax abatement, period?

          5                 MR. FERNANDES:  Because, under the

          6  current Law, they don't have to necessarily produce

          7  affordable housing if it's outside of the exclusion

          8  zone.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And they'll

         10  get the credit. Is that correct?

         11                 MR. FERNANDES:  Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So,

         13  concerning this whole issue, do you have a position

         14  on the onsite 80/20 within the exclusion zone, if

         15  anything?

         16                 MR. FERNANDES:  We think it's

         17  possible that it could work in the most lucrative

         18  parts of Manhattan.  The expansion of the inclusion

         19  zone could pose problems, again, where projects

         20  that, if they were permitted, particularly in the

         21  exclusion zones that are outside of let's say the

         22  most lucrative corridor of mid- town Manhattan, if

         23  you require them to put affordable housing onsite,

         24  there's a strong indication from the developers that

         25  we deal with, that they would walk away from the
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          2  construction of those projects all together.

          3  Obviously, it's hard to predict what would happen

          4  before it actually happens, but, if we rely on

          5  developers to tell us what they can financially do

          6  and what they can't do, they've told us they don't

          7  believe that the onsite requirement, particularly

          8  outside of the most lucrative part of Manhattan,

          9  works, especially in parts of Brooklyn for example,

         10  where, if they have to put it onsite, they may not

         11  actually be able to market the properties in a way

         12  that would attract the highest price on the market-

         13  rate component, which would, therefore, preclude

         14  them, not only from doing that, but also doing the

         15  affordable component.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Let me just

         17   --  if I can Mr. Chair, can I ask a couple of more

         18  questions?  Well, as far as time-frame is concerned?

         19    Yes.

         20                 Mr. Chair, with respects to the  --

         21  all of the developer and construction people you are

         22  dealing with, utilize unionized labor?

         23                 MR. FERNANDES:  I would say most of

         24  them, but we also deal with some developers who,

         25  depending on where the project is located, and
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          2  depending on its characteristics, may be unionized

          3  in some circumstances and either mixed or open-

          4  shop, non- union in other circumstances.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And you

          6  heard the Commissioner, you were here, I believe,

          7  when the Commissioner, we were discussing the

          8  proposed $400 million housing trust fund, and I

          9  asked the question, "What would $600 million buy?",

         10  and I think he said about 10,000 units, I believe he

         11  said, in the first year and approximately 20,000.

         12  Any comment from any one of you?  I assume that that

         13  is with all unionized employees building the

         14  housing.  Is that correct?  Any comment from either

         15  one of you on that?

         16                 MR. MCINNIS:  Well, we are trying to

         17  address this on a lot of different levels, and

         18  historically, our relationship with Housing

         19  Preservation, Development hasn't been good, in all

         20  honesty. But we have opened up dialogue with the

         21  Commissioner regards to that, and as Paul said, we

         22  do feel a part of their portfolio would address  --

         23  you know we could work on some of these projects as

         24  I say, where the value is.  And that's why Proposal

         25  486 versus Proposal 490, allows us to negotiate
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          2  something in regards to that down the road.  But

          3  also there is an openness and willingness within the

          4  building trades, and most of the trades, and maybe

          5  not some, on to use certain other rates to address

          6  the affordable housing utilizing a B rate, or lower

          7  rate, to address, you know, what everybody does

          8  want, is more affordable housing.  But we don't feel

          9  that affordable housing and de- utilization of a

         10  qualified and paid workforce should be  --  you

         11  know, it should be one or the other.

         12                 And that's kind of where it is now.

         13  It's like if it's affordable housing then, you know,

         14  basically, and historically, it's been, you guys are

         15  too expensive.  But, as I say, we've been pretty

         16  creative in trying to address that, and with HPD

         17  going from some of the smaller one - and two-family

         18  homes to a lot of the portfolio now with HPD is

         19  larger developments on the horizons means less, you

         20  know, they're going to larger and larger parcels out

         21  there, and we feel that we can in economies this

         22  scale will be effective on that, but also if we do

         23  address, you know, whether it's a B rate or

         24  different issues within that, we can provide that

         25  workforce and put them under, you know, the

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  protections of a safe, unionized workforce.  But,

          3  that hasn't really  --  we haven't gotten there yet,

          4  and we felt this was a missed opportunity so far, in

          5  getting developers out there, and, you know,

          6  understanding that you need the equity to build, you

          7  need the certain amount of units to build.

          8                 But, totally throwing out the, you

          9  know, the workforce out there, as I say, we're not

         10  really representing a vast majority of the workforce

         11  out there, but we feel that they do deserve that

         12  representation, they do deserve to be in the system.

         13                 You know, the workers we interviewed,

         14  they're not in the social security system, they're

         15  not in unemployment insurance, they don't have

         16  workmen's compensation, and these are publicly

         17  subsidized projects, large numbers of publicly

         18  subsidized projects. We felt that was a missed issue

         19  in this debate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  My last

         21  question is, you may have been here when I talked

         22  about, you know, and the Commissioner indicated that

         23  there was not too many, if at all, 80/20 built

         24  within the exclusion zone, and he felt that moving

         25  to 70/30 would be just almost out of the question in
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          2  the exclusionary zone, and even more so outside of

          3  the exclusionary zone; and he showed the charts up

          4  there, and I don't know if you had an opportunity to

          5  see them.  He talked about basically the profit

          6  margin of developers.

          7                 What is the average profit margin of

          8  a developer in building a site?

          9                 MR. FERNANDES:  Wish we knew.  We

         10  don't get to see their books.  That's an age- old

         11  collective bargaining issue, where management

         12  doesn't open up it's books  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What do you

         14  think?

         15                 MR. MCINNIS:  They seem to be doing

         16  pretty good.

         17                 MR. FERNANDES:  I've never seen one

         18  pull up in a Volkswagen Jetta  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  That's what I

         20  drive.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And finally,

         22  you've heard  --  you may have heard what I asked,

         23  you know, the last individual that testified

         24  yesterday, and he sat through all of the testimony

         25  and he still said, "I don't believe them".  What is
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          2  your opinion about whether or not, you know, if we

          3   --  if we  --  let's assume this Council said, we

          4  don't believe them either and push forward, let's

          5  assume a 70/30 or 60/40 or whatever, and Citywide

          6  exclusion, do you think that we would be cutting off

          7  our face  -- nose to spite our face?

          8                 MR. MCINNIS:  From kicking it around,

          9  we believe on the 486, we don't believe that they

         10  can't respect the workforce and pay their workforce

         11  a living wage.  That's what we don't believe.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.  Okay.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         15                 Council Member James.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  This whole

         17  discussion of onsite/off-site is a really

         18  interesting subject matter.  I support onsite

         19  development because, I oppose segregated housing

         20  patterns; and if you look at the City of New York

         21  and the way that we live as a society, and as human

         22  beings, unfortunately, this is becoming one of the

         23  most segregated cities in the nation.

         24                 I believe it's  --  part of it has to

         25  do a lot with government policy, and so, that's why
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          2  I have pushed by colleagues and pushed the Speaker

          3  for onsite housing, and I suspect that the Mayor

          4  supported that position, and I believe the Speaker

          5  has supported that position in 490.

          6                 So, my questions is, and I remember

          7  in Albany, at some point in time whenever there's a

          8  not-for-profit developer, the rules with respect to

          9  prevailing wage, and for the most part when

         10  not-for-profits get involved in building affordable

         11  housing, union is not involved.  Yes?  It's not a

         12  union project.

         13                 MR. MCINNIS:  We've had, you know,

         14  we've had a number of issues with various not- for-

         15  profits.  The vast, you know, we've had a lot of

         16  issues with not-for-profits.  There are certain

         17  not-for-profits, you know, out there that we have

         18  worked on said projects.  But, you know, the road to

         19  hell was paved with good intentions.  You know, not

         20   --  just because you're not-for-profit doesn't give

         21  you the moral highground to not pay your workforce.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  No.  You are

         23  absolutely right.  And so, my point, I guess my

         24  point is this, if, in fact we go to onsite housing,

         25  where the affordable housing has to be contained
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          2  within one existing building, and because, again, in

          3  the District that I represent in Downtown Brooklyn,

          4  where you can get a bigger bang for your buck, and

          5  density is always an issue and you can go higher,

          6  and higher, and higher, invariable, most of those

          7  projects are union, which is a good thing, because

          8  workers are protected and we're employing a

          9  significant number of union members, and there are

         10  OSHA requirements, and prevailing wage and security

         11  and all of that good stuff.

         12                 So, I would think, that as opposed to

         13  going  --  using the old certificate program, where

         14  often times they sell a certificate to a

         15  not-for-profit developer, that developer goes off

         16  site, engages non- union and all of the issues that

         17  you raise are a concern, that onsite, most likely

         18  union, again, in my District, I know  --  you know,

         19  being very parochial, in Downtown Brooklyn, because

         20  we can allow for some density, we go higher, and

         21  mostly it's union.  So those, issues that you

         22  discuss and that are contained in your testimony

         23  here today, would not apply; and it would be a good

         24  thing.  Yes?

         25                 MR. FERNANDES:  Well, we can go on,
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          2  and I'll be very frank about it.  What we are told

          3  is that, if you put, by requirement, affordable

          4  housing in a market rate development onsite,  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

          6                 MR. FERNANDES:  --  That you will

          7  almost certainly, depress the market rate prices for

          8  which the property can be rented or sold, which

          9  will, therefore, negatively affect the

         10  profitability.

         11                 Now, that may be a terrible, social

         12  commentary on the way people make purchasing

         13  decisions, but that is  --  that is the reality of

         14  what developers tell us, and by virtue of that fact,

         15  and we do accept it as a fact, --

         16                 MR. MCINNIS:  Right.

         17                 MR. FERNANDES:  --  That, that those

         18  developers tell us if they are required to do that,

         19  it will become  --  almost impossible for them, not

         20  necessarily  --  there are certain places where it

         21  could work, but there are a lot of places where it

         22  will actually result in them either having to use

         23  non- union labor or just abandoning the project all

         24  together.

         25                 MR. MCINNIS:  That's the choices that
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          2  we're being given.  It's basically 80 percent union

          3  onsite and 20 percent non union off- site, or it

          4  doesn't get built or it's 100 percent union --  non-

          5  union onsite.   Those are the kind of  --  what we

          6  were being told.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.  And

          8  those are the scenarios, I believe, that some

          9  developers are presenting, to, not only to you, but

         10  to the general public.  I, you know, I would argue

         11  against that.  Because I am of the opinion that,

         12  given the fact that, you know, given the density in

         13  Downtown Brooklyn, those duplexes and penthouses can

         14  cross-subsidize and pay for those lower affordable

         15  housing units.  And, if you look at the  --  their

         16  bottom line, I believe they're in a position to pay

         17  for the affordable units.

         18                 But, even still, I suspect that if

         19  they refuse to do the affordable housing and they

         20  just do market, it would be union; and you would

         21  still have jobs.

         22                 MR. MCINNIS: I can name a number of

         23  developments within your project that haven't gone

         24  that way.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  They just

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  walked away, and they just did non- union?

          3                 MR. MCINNIS:  No, no.  They built it

          4  non- union within your District.  And a number of

          5  developers that we won't go into, within the

          6  District that you are talking about, a high density

          7  District that you are talking about, that we're

          8  facing those issues with.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And they took

         10  advantage of the 421 tax?

         11                 MR. MCINNIS: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, I guess

         13  your position is that if, in fact, we go forward,

         14  they should build union, they should do prevailing

         15  wage, the should, obviously, comply with OSHA, and

         16  in a perfect world, they should build affordable

         17  housing for your members.  Because your members,

         18  obviously, are calling me saying, we need affordable

         19  housing, as well, because they are being priced out

         20  of the market.

         21                 MR. MCINNIS:  Well, if they're not

         22  going to work, and they're making decent wage, they

         23  are not buying anything.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         25                 MR. MCINNIS:  In a perfect world, we
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          2  understand that this is not a perfect world, and we

          3  understand that the market is not going to bear out

          4  paying A rate at all projects, especially on

          5  affordable projects, and we understand that.  And we

          6  feel that there is a long discussion involved here

          7  before  --  everybody's not going to get what they

          8  want on everything  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         10                 MR. MCINNIS:  --  On that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But are you

         12  hearing from your members that there is a crisis in

         13  affordable housing, and they're increasingly being

         14  displaced out of the City of New York? Are you

         15  hearing that?

         16                 MR.  MCINNIS:  You know, our members

         17  are happy when they're working; and from that, you

         18  know, the housing crisis on that, you know,

         19  everybody feels  --  whether its our members or our

         20  families or anybody else.  Everybody kinds of feels

         21  that, but, you know.  What we're talking about right

         22  now is the significant part of the New York City

         23  construction market, in the affordable housing

         24  sector, and the residential market, that subsidizes

         25  421-A, where that resident workforce has little or
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          2  no options about what is going on.  We are not

          3  generally talking about our membership here. In a

          4  lot of the HPD work it is basically people living

          5  hand-to-mouth.

          6                 Those are the kind of workforce that

          7  we are trying to bring up with today, that, you

          8  know, when the Council, when the State, decides to

          9  allow these tax breaks, there should be something.

         10  Whether it's union, you know, at the end of the day

         11  if it's a union area project, or at least the fact

         12  that they should have some sort of responsibility to

         13  the workforce that is doing this construction.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you

         16  gentlemen.  Thank you Council Member James.

         17                 At this time we'll call up the next

         18  panel.  Again, Rabbi David Niederman, Mr. Allan

         19  Lebovits, Mr. Carl Caller.  And they'll be followed

         20  by Mr. Javier Valdes; Mr. Ronald Lewis, Roland

         21  Lewis, sorry, from Habitat for Humanity; Mr. Valdes

         22  is from the New York Immigration Coalition; Margaret

         23  Chin, Asian Americans for Equality; and Michelle de

         24  la Uz, from the Fifth Avenue Committee. That'll be

         25  the panel that will follow this one.
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          2                 Gentlemen, you may begin in any

          3  order.

          4                 RABBI NIEDERMAN:  Good afternoon.

          5                 I would like to thank the Chair and

          6  the Committee for sitting here and listening to us.

          7                 Let me say my name is Rabbi David

          8  Niederman.  I am the head of the United Jewish

          9  Organization of Williamsburg, which our mission is

         10  providing low-income and affordable housing.

         11                 In fact, we have done a major

         12  project, which we should be proud of and that's the

         13  Schaeffer Landing.  We put in our development funds

         14  back into the project, it should have 60  -- 60/40

         15  and onsite; and we are very proud of that.

         16                 However, we all know that there is

         17  three things in real estate, that's location,

         18  location and location.  So, there are places where

         19  you have to force an affordable housing as a

         20  component of giving people the ability to build, but

         21  in other places such as Williamburg, I will be

         22  parochial but that's true other places, as well. If

         23  421-A is not granted, then there will be no more

         24  income, no more housing for a  --  people who have

         25  been, until now, for the past five years, or eight
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          2  years, they have built more  -- 1,500 units of

          3  housing, unsubsidized, no land from the City, no

          4  money from the government, and the only thing they

          5   --  the only way they were able to build that,

          6  because they knew the end of the day, they can

          7  afford that to pay the mortgage, because there is

          8  this one component and that is they'll only to worry

          9  for the mortgage, and they will not have to deal

         10  with the issue of taxes.  If that does not  --  if

         11  they will have to deal with the taxes issue, they

         12  will  --  won't be able to afford the unit.

         13                 Let me go to one other issue.  This

         14  is the luxury cap issue.  The luxury cap we agree,

         15  we should not give a bonus to developer, but again,

         16  the end user is the one who need (sic) that.

         17  And when you read the press releases, you look at a

         18  one- to- ten ratio on the AV, and we spoke about it.

         19    But I can tell you I'm looking at pieces of

         20  property in Williamsburg, and was built in June 6th

         21  for example, the price was $283,000, and they have a

         22  $23,000 tax, if not  --  it would not been abated.

         23  And at the same time, you have a project in

         24  Manhattan, okay, that was $1.4  -- $400,000 and they

         25  pay only  $13,000 for taxes.
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          2                 So, what I'm trying to say is, that

          3  you want to do this Bill, if you put in the luxury

          4  cap, remember, you will be hurting a constituency

          5  all over, who won't be able to pay their taxes; and,

          6  therefore, before  --  since this Legislation will

          7  only take effect in a year from now, there is room

          8  and time to work with the State to fix this issue of

          9  tax assessment.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MR. CALLER:  Honorable Members of

         14  Committee, I appreciate sitting this late hour and

         15  listening to our position.

         16                 My name is Carl Caller.  I'm an

         17  attorney.  I practice in Borough Park, and I have a

         18  lot of  --  deal with a lot of sales of condominiums

         19  in Borough Park and Williamsburg.  And I can attest

         20  anecdotal evidence of all that Rabbi Niederman was

         21  saying.

         22                 Basically, you know, when a person

         23  comes to my office, the issue is whether you buy in

         24  Borough Park or Williamsburg, or you buy in Lakewood

         25  or Munsie.  The only thing that's keeping the people
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          2  buying in Borough Park and Williamsburg, is the tax

          3  abatement.  You know, we do the numbers, and that's

          4  the only thing they can afford.  Because our people

          5  need large family --  large apartments.  And, you

          6  know, for large apartments, you must build, there's

          7  no rental apartments.

          8                 So, the entire industry is built on

          9  the fact that you can buy an apartment and pay  --

         10  and have low taxes compared to the other states,

         11  which don't have this program.  This program has

         12  basically kept the communities in here.

         13                 I happen to be a tax lawyer.  I was a

         14  member of the Martin Tax Task Force, which advised

         15  the Attorney General on co-ops and condominiums.

         16  So, I have a little experience in assessments in all

         17  the fields.  There's a lot of  --  I don't want to

         18  go  -- there's a lot of issue which you have to

         19  address, which was brought up, you know; but, one

         20  thing that's really bothering me, which I came out

         21  this  -- basically, to protect the interest of

         22  Borough Park and Williamsburg.

         23                 I'm just going to address a

         24  Williamsburg issue, and my colleague will address

         25  the general issue.
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          2                 The way the Bill is written for

          3  affordable, it discriminates very heavily against

          4  large apartments.  Let me give you a for- instance.

          5                 I think the Bill is designed to have

          6  a person buy an affordable apartment.  Let's assume,

          7  which we probably all can agree, that a $320,000 is

          8  an affordable apartment.  What you can get for

          9  $320,000 now, I mean if you  --  at the best price,

         10  is an 800 foot- square apartment at $400 a square

         11  foot, which gives you 320, that is an affordable,

         12  and that's, I guess, the goal of the Council, the

         13  goal of the Mayor's Office, to provide those units.

         14                 It works very well for an 800 square

         15  foot apartment. An 800 square foot apartment only

         16  contains two bedrooms.  The people in Borough Park

         17  and Williamsburg need at least four bedrooms, you

         18  know three or four children, five, six children, and

         19  these are the people that are buying these

         20  apartments.  I mean, they have no choice.

         21                 Doing the same math as an 800 foot-

         22  square apartment, which is $400 per square foot,

         23  price for a 1,500 square foot apartment, the price

         24  would be $600,000.  In using the Bill, that would

         25  make it luxury, and it would go out of the
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          2  affordable program.  Although this is not really a

          3  luxury apartment, this is what the basic need  --  I

          4  mean for $400 a square foot, you cannot build luxury

          5  and you cannot make much of a profit.

          6                 So, accordingly, what I propose, that

          7  the Bill should be adjusted to set up another

          8  standard for affordable, which makes it very simple.

          9    It's a simple number, you don't have to do

         10  numbers, you just walk in and say, to Departments,

         11  you do square footage.  You say Departments should

         12  not sell at more than $400 a square foot, and that

         13  will give you a cap, and that will know  -- the

         14  developer is not selling more than $400, his profit

         15  is limited, and the people can afford it.  It's much

         16  easier to administrate. This would give you a great

         17  number.

         18                 Okay, so again, this is what is

         19  bothering me.

         20                 I came back in back from Toronto.  I

         21  was in Toronto last night at a wedding.  I came

         22  back, I fly in early to be able to testify today,

         23  because this is really  --  goes to  --  to save

         24  housing for Borough Park and Williamsburg.

         25                 Thank you.

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          3                 MR. LEBOVITS:  Good afternoon, or

          4  good evening, I should say.

          5                 My name is Allan Lebovits.  I am with

          6  the law firm of N.C. Caller, P.C.  I am an

          7  associate.

          8                 I also spent a lot of time in law

          9  school studying the 421-A program and the real

         10  property tax law governing that program.

         11                 I was also an intern at the New York

         12  State Attorney Generals Office, in the Investment

         13  Protection Bureau, which regulates condo and co-ops,

         14  so, just to establish my credibility. I will move

         15  on.

         16                 I really want to address Mr. Martin

         17  Dilan, you know Chairman Dilan, and Mr. Fidler, on

         18  the three- family dwellings issue, because I

         19  understand they're of vital importance in your

         20  neighborhoods of the constituents which you

         21  represent.

         22                 You've been hearing a lot about a

         23  six- percent equalization rate that class 1

         24  dwellings have, and everyone's very sympathetic

         25  towards it because it's a much lower equalization
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          2  rate.

          3  What you don't hear, and which I will tell you right

          4  now, is that when these properties are converted to

          5  condominium ownership, and they're sold in

          6  individual units, they lose what is called Section

          7  581 Protection.

          8                 Section 581 of the Real Property Tax

          9  Law states that you should assess properties as

         10  rentals, and not based on the sales price.

         11                 When you are in a class 1 family,

         12  they disregard 581 by law, and they are mandated to

         13  assess these properties at full value.  So, for

         14  example, if you have a $700,000 apartment, or let's

         15  go even lower, you want to go affordable, let's take

         16  a $300,000 apartment.  If you assess it, based on

         17  the full sales price, your assessment for a class 1

         18  family, which everyone is coming out and saying has

         19  a much lower equalization rate, you will come out to

         20  a higher tax, annually, than a class 2 property in

         21  let's say a $200 or $300,000 family dwelling.

         22                 So, even though you're hearing about

         23  the, you know, the sympathy that we should not have

         24  towards class 1s, they are perhaps the three- family

         25  dwellings, they need the protection probably more
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          2  than the class 2s and the larger multi-unit family

          3  dwellings.

          4                 The second point that I want to make

          5  also, is, now that we're on a lower-scale housing,

          6  we're not on a larger developments, let's talk about

          7  units that are ten and under.

          8                 The 20 percent affordable requirement

          9  given to multi- family housing, really wouldn't be

         10  best suited for ten units and under.  Ten units and

         11  under already have a very tight budget, and if you

         12  require a developer to give 20 percent, which may be

         13  two units, or 1.8, which also comes out to two, you

         14  are actually taking away any profit margin that is

         15  left in that development.

         16                 What's ultimately going to happen is,

         17  you are going to discourage these smaller

         18  properties, and I understand, Mr. Fidler, you made a

         19  statement saying before we want to encourage small

         20  development, you don't want to go for the multi-

         21  family developments, which are actually promoting

         22  larger, high- scale luxury apartments.

         23                 It's our opinion that if this Council

         24  and this Committee will pass Intro. 486,

         25  essentially, you can kiss away the three- family
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          2  dwellings, you will not see them in large portions

          3  in Brooklyn or in the outer Boroughs, and quite

          4  frankly, I think those are the class 1s and those

          5  are the protections that we need to be offering the

          6  constituents and the people and the Members of this

          7  Council.

          8                 I want to thank you for coming out

          9  here and allowing me the privilege to testify, and

         10  thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you very

         12  much.  I turn to Council Member Simcha Felder, who

         13  has a question for the panel.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I just didn't

         15  understand, Mr. Caller's testimony --  some of your

         16  testimony.  I don't understand the issue.  Assuming

         17  that three-family were included,  --

         18                 MR. CALLER:  My issue is not a

         19  three-family, my issue is the larger Williamsburg

         20  development, which has, let's say 20 units, and it's

         21  subject to affordable.  So they would have to

         22  allocate, let's say, four units to affordable.  The

         23  units they would allocate would have to be tiny

         24  units, because to meet the affordable, they have to

         25  sell 320.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Oh.  Okay.  I

          3  understand.

          4                 So them, Mr. Lebovits, assuming for a

          5  moment that the three- families were included, and

          6  there was a cap, I'm not talking about the other

          7  issues, but if the three- families were included,

          8  and there was a cap, $600,000, something like that,

          9  do you have a problem with that?

         10                 MR. LEBOVITS:  Well, that depends.

         11  Are you capping it out at the sale price or are we

         12  capping it out at the assessed value?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  At the sales

         14  price.

         15                 MR. LEBOVITS:  At the sales price, I

         16  think the AV cap is  --  or at the sales price,

         17  might be a little bit too low, but I think at

         18  $600,000 there is more of a feasibility that it

         19  could work.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:   Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         22                 I think that was a very good

         23  question, Council Member Felder.  That helped me a

         24  lot also, personally.

         25                 I want to thank the panel.  And I
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          2  want to thank you for coming in to testify at this

          3  late hour, on this subject.  And, just thank you.

          4                 The next panel, Mr. Roland Lewis,

          5  Javier Valdes, Michelle de la Uz, and Margaret Chin.

          6  Is there someone subbing for Margaret  -- Maria

          7  Boltino?  Okay.

          8                 Okay.  As was the tradition

          9  yesterday, usually asked the gentlemen to defer to

         10  the ladies on the panel, then amongst the ladies on

         11  the panel, they can choose amongst themselves as to

         12  who begins first.

         13                 MS. BOLTINO:  Thank you.

         14                 Good afternoon.

         15                 My name is Maria Boltino, and I'm

         16  here speaking on behalf of Margaret Chin, the Deputy

         17  Executive Director of Asian Americans For Equality.

         18                 AAFE is also a founding member of the

         19  Queens Affordable Housing, which is a coalition

         20  that's represented here today, and it has more than

         21  20 community-based groups that advocate for the

         22  preservation and creation of affordable housing.

         23                 Today, we wanted to make a couple of

         24  points on the 421-A program.  We've seen devastating

         25  changes in recent years in our communities, with

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  luxury condos going up, and long- time working class

          3  residents being displaced.

          4                 In Flushing alone, we've seen 2,000-

          5  1500 new units of housing being built with the 421-A

          6  tax abatement, and yet, only one senior housing

          7  development, with 178 affordable units. Meanwhile,

          8  throughout the City, we're losing about 20,000-

          9  30,000 units of rent- stabilized apartments every

         10  year.

         11                 In Chinatown and the Lower East Side,

         12  rent regulated units are disappearing by almost

         13  2,000 units annually.  With comprehensive reform of

         14  the 421-A program, we can begin to turn this tide

         15  around.

         16                 We'd like to just outline two points

         17  in the 421-A program that we would like to see

         18  implemented.

         19                 One is the expansion of the 421-A

         20  geographic exclusion area.  We're glad that Lower

         21  Manhattan was included, but we're sadly disappointed

         22  that many of the neighborhoods that we represent in

         23  Queens, are not.  We support the requirement of a

         24  Commission to review the exclusion area, and we hope

         25  that they will assess the housing markets in our
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          2  neighborhoods.  And so, we hope that soon we will

          3  see the inclusion of Flushing, Corona, Elmhurst, and

          4  Long Island City.

          5                 We're also happy to see the

          6  Affordable Housing Trust Fund, and we hope that soon

          7  the amount of $400 million that is originally cited

          8  will be increased to reflect more realistic

          9  assessments of tax revenues.

         10                 Finally, we would also recommend that

         11  the affordable Housing Trust Fund be used to create

         12  affordable housing opportunities for families making

         13  less than 50 percent of the area median income.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         16                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Chairman Martin Dilan,

         17  Council Member James, and other distinguished

         18  Members of the Committee, thanks for the opportunity

         19  to testify today, and to testify on 421-A and what,

         20  arguably, is one of the greatest tools that we have

         21  at this time to generate affordable housing units in

         22  the City.

         23                 My name is Michelle de la Uz, and I

         24  am the Executive Director of the Fifth Avenue

         25  Committee; and the Fifth Avenue Committee is a 28-
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          2  year old, comprehensive non- profit community

          3  development corporation, whose mission is to pursue

          4  social and economic justice.  We do that in many

          5  ways.  One of the ways is that we build and manage

          6  affordable housing.  We've built 600 units in 100

          7  different buildings.  We currently have over 300

          8  units in development, representing over $100 million

          9  in direct investment in South Brooklyn.

         10                 There's certainly broad consensus

         11  that we must seize the momentum that we have around

         12  reforming 421-A property tax exemption program, but

         13  there certainly not a consensus on how far that

         14  reform should go.  And I think today, and yesterday,

         15  we've heard a lot about the minutiae, of that piece,

         16  but I think we need to take a step back and put

         17  something in context.

         18                 All legislation, all laws, need to be

         19  a reflection of the values of society, and those

         20  values have to be reflected in what's currently

         21  going on.

         22                 So, let's do that.  As we all know,

         23  we're anticipating population growth in New York

         24  City of over a million people in the next ten plus

         25  years.  It's anticipated that the significant
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          2  portion of that population growth is going to be by

          3  new immigrants and low and moderate- income people.

          4                 We already have a housing crisis in

          5  this City.  We have a three- percent vacancy rate.

          6  There's an estimate that even without a population

          7  growth, that we have a deficit of more than 100,000

          8  units of housing.  With a population growth, we

          9  estimate that that deficit, in terms of units of

         10  housing, to be closer to half a million units.

         11                 We have 70,000, plus units of

         12  federally subsidized housing, which are at risk of

         13  opting- out, and those units being lost forever.

         14  And those units primarily serve very low- income New

         15  Yorkers, primarily folks earning about $15,000 a

         16  year.

         17                 At the same time, City land is

         18  becoming more and more scarce.  That is the context

         19  in which we're having this conversation; and so, the

         20  Fifth Avenue Committee as an advocate for low and

         21  moderate- income people, and as an advocate for

         22  affordable housing, believes that whatever reform

         23  takes place, it should be as broad as possible.

         24  There should be no, no tax exemption without

         25  providing public good; and that public good should
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          2  be affordable housing.  We shouldn't be shy about

          3  making that demand.  That should be an unequivocable

          4  thing that we demand as tax payers.

          5                 At the same time, we need to expand

          6  the trust fund. The $400 million is vastly under

          7  funded, given everything I just said, and given the

          8  need that we have in this City.  A billion dollars

          9  is scratching the surface, I'm sure Roland will say.

         10    We need to be bold in our statement, and bold in

         11  what we're trying to achieve here.

         12                 Finally, you know, many of the things

         13  that are going to be said by other folks here, but I

         14  would also say that one of the things that Fifth

         15  Avenue Committee does, is, we build low income

         16  housing, moderate- income housing, and we build

         17  mixed- income communities.  And the notion that

         18  someone who makes $35,000 a year, or $25,000 a year,

         19  somehow can't live next to someone who make a

         20  $120,000 a year, is something that we should all be

         21  challenging. What kind of community, what kind of

         22  society do we want.  Do we want a society that

         23  states that that's okay, or do we want a society

         24  where we state that no human dignity needs to be

         25  valued and regardless of how much someone earns, the
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          2  reality is, that they deserve a place to live that

          3  is quality housing and that we can all be proud of.

          4                 So, I ask you to make bold steps, and

          5  not to be shy.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          7                 MR. VALDES:  Good evening.

          8                 I would like to thank the Committee

          9  on Housing and Building, as well as the Members of

         10  the City Council for allowing our organization to

         11  testify at this important hearing.

         12                 My name is Javier Valdes.  I am the

         13  Director of Special Projects at the New York

         14  Immigration Coalition, a policy and advocacy

         15  organization with more than 185 member groups

         16  throughout the New York State, that work with

         17  newcomers to this Country, and fight for fairness

         18  and opportunity for immigrant communities.

         19                 New York City, as my fellow

         20  colleagues have stated, is currently faced with an

         21  affordable- housing crisis as never seen before.

         22  While New York City has seen record levels of new

         23  construction, $21 billions of new construction in

         24  2006 alone, the numbers of units that are safe and

         25  affordable for low to mid- income families, has
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          2  decreased dramatically.  From 2002 to 2005 the

          3  median monthly rent for unsubsidized apartments in

          4  the City increased by 20 percent, while Citywide

          5  median income fell by six percent.

          6                 With immigrants making up two- thirds

          7  of the low- wage workers in New York City, the

          8  disparity between income and rent has left many

          9  immigrants with no choice but to remain in

         10  substandard and dangerous housing, provided by

         11  negligent landlords.  For example, in 2005, the

         12  median income of U.S born, New York City heads of

         13  household, was $48,800, whereas the median income

         14  for foreign born, including Puerto Rican born, heads

         15  of household in New York City, was $36,300.  Other

         16  examples that I want to share with the Committee, is

         17  that 27 percent of immigrant's households pay more

         18   --  pay half or more of their income in rent.

         19  Immigrant renters are three- times as likely to live

         20  in overcrowded conditions, and immigrant renters are

         21  more than 62 percent more likely to live in unsound

         22  housing conditions.  This is just to state the fact

         23  that we need to continue to build affordable housing

         24  for immigrants to live in.

         25                 Immigrants for a very long time have
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          2  been a vital component of New York City's

          3  population, and its economic dynamics. In order to

          4  insure that immigrants and their families find and

          5  maintain affordable housing, we urge that the

          6  support from the Council to take into account the

          7  initiatives that are outlined in the proposed Intro.

          8  490.  We feel that this initiative will augment the

          9  geographic scope of the tax breaks, especially in

         10  the Borough of Queens, which currently does not

         11  allow for this, who has seen the largest population

         12  increase over the last five years, especially in the

         13  immigrant community.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. LEWIS:  Chairman Dilan, and

         16  Members of the Committee, I am Roland Lewis.  I am

         17  the Executive Director of Habitat for Humanity for

         18  New York City.

         19                 I am thankful for the opportunity to

         20  give a few thoughts on the 421-A revisions that you

         21  guys are considering.

         22                 Habitat for Humanity works in New

         23  York, building descent affordable housing for people

         24  who otherwise would not be able to  --  that was a

         25  short three minutes.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 All right.  I know it's late in the

          4  day.

          5                 All right.  We build throughout the

          6  City for people who otherwise would not be able to

          7  afford descent, affordable housing.   We build with

          8  about 10,000 volunteers every year.  We build about

          9  a couple hundred faith institutions that engage in

         10  our work, and help us build.  Dozens of

         11  corporations, dozens of schools, and we build for

         12  these folks who we meet and work with every day, who

         13  play by all the rules.  Sometimes working two or

         14  three jobs and can't find and afford a descent home

         15  to live in.

         16                 And so, it's a little  --  not

         17  ironic, but it's fitting that we're talking about

         18  rules that developers use, by law, to build homes

         19  and get a tax abatement that they don't need in many

         20  neighborhoods in the City.  So we're here to change

         21  those rules.

         22                 Specifically, the two points I'd like

         23  to talk about is the expansion of the exclusion

         24  area, and the trust fund.  I think the point's been

         25  made a few times before, and I won't repeat it, but
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          2  I think's its woefully under funded at $400 million

          3  and it could be much higher, as Michelle just said.

          4                 I come here as an advocate and a

          5  builder; but I mostly come here, as you can see,

          6  literally, as a messenger.  This year  --  I'll put

          7  it up here, it's quite heavy  --  It's a happy

          8  holiday, but it's a  --  these are messages to  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  They look like

         10  fried chicken.

         11                 MR. LEWIS:  Dream on.

         12                 These are cards, seriously, there are

         13  1,926 cards that New Yorkers have filled out in

         14  churches, at our work sites, talking about 421-A

         15  throughout the year.  We've been educating people,

         16  talking to people about this issue, and they

         17  responded by letting their voice be heard through

         18  these cards.  I hope you will take these expressions

         19  seriously.

         20                 Obviously, you guys represent New

         21  Yorkers throughout the City, but this is a topic

         22  that resinates tremendously with folks.  When they

         23  understand the tax giveaway, the money that's been

         24  going, probably, unnecessarily, to folks that don't

         25  need it, and also the need that is out there that
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          2  they're working with their hands, literally, to

          3  meet, they are very happy to give  --  to lift a

          4  pen, as well as a hammer.

          5                 So, again, I thank you very much.  I

          6  call for you guys to be enlightened and judicious in

          7  the next few days as you come to, hopefully, a

          8  compromise that will maximize the amount of

          9  affordable housing that we produce through reform of

         10  421-A program.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thanks.  But they

         12  are addressed to the Mayor Bloomberg,  do you  --

         13                 MR. LEWIS:  Well, I hope you'll

         14  deliver it to him also.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Oh. Okay.

         16                 MR. LEWIS:  It's to all our

         17  representatives.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  Does

         19  anybody have questions for the panel.  I see Council

         20  Member Jackson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         22                 Concerning and  --  yes, I was going

         23  to say the same thing.  This is addressed to Mayor

         24  Bloomberg.  We're not the Mayor. The Mayor is on

         25  that side of City Hall.
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          2                 MR. LEWIS:  He was here before,

          3  right?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Oh.  But,

          5  mainly, in Habitat for Humanity you do a great job,

          6  let me just say.  But you mainly build, it's my

          7  understanding, smaller units like smaller apartment

          8  buildings that are not really, as far as the numbers

          9   --

         10                 MR. LEWIS:  Councilman Jackson, I  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is that

         12  correct?

         13                 MR. LEWIS:  Councilmen Dilan could

         14  correct you. We're building a 41 unit development in

         15  his District.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Affordable?

         17                 MR. LEWIS:  That's large for us, but

         18  that's not  -- you know, we do what we can.  We

         19  don't build as large as Michelle does in other areas

         20  in the City, but we do what we can with our sweat

         21  equity and volunteer model.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  And

         23  so, you're basically  --  you want to ensure that

         24  the  --  you want to extend the exclusion zone.

         25                 MR. LEWIS:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is that

          3  correct?  Do you have any idea where do you want to

          4  extend it to?

          5                 MR. LEWIS:  Well, I'll leave that to

          6  the wisdom of the Council.  My Board has a   --  I

          7  represent an organization that has differing views

          8  upon it, but we do want it extended, and we'd like

          9  it to go further.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         11                 Now, did any of the panel members

         12  address the issue of, with respects to, I assume all

         13  of you want the 421-A extended. Are you in favor of

         14  Intro. 486, which is the Speaker and Erik Dilan's

         15  Bill, or Intro. 490, which is Annabel Palma's Bill,

         16  or do you know the difference between the two?  Do

         17  you have any thoughts on that?

         18                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Council Member Yassky

         19   --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Can you

         21  speak into the mike please, if you don't mind.

         22                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Council Member Palma's

         23  Bill is also Council Member Yassky's Bill, is that

         24  right?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.
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          2  Annabel Palma, I believe  --

          3                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  Is the

          5  first  --

          6                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  Name on

          8  their.

          9                 MS. DE LA UZ:   Is the first sponsor.

         10     And, I mean I certainly believe that Speaker

         11  Quinn's Bill and Chairman Martin Dilan's Bill is an

         12  improvement, a significant improvement in what the

         13  original panel recommended.  There's no question

         14  about that.

         15                 Certainly the Fifth Avenue Committee,

         16  it's our position that the Bill that Council Member

         17  Yassky, and Council Member Yassky is someone that

         18  Fifth Avenue Committee has worked very closely with.

         19    He's someone who represents us in addition to

         20  Council Member James.  His Bill goes even farther in

         21  reaching the levels of affordability, and really

         22  having no exclusion zone, that we would like to see.

         23                 I think, you know, Fifth Avenue

         24  Committee is an organization that believes in

         25  accountable development.  And, there's no need in
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          2  our mind to provide tax breaks, unnecessarily,

          3  without a return to the public.  The reality is, we

          4  should expect that.   Providing an as- of- right tax

          5  break without a requirement for affordable housing,

          6  seems unnecessary in this market.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I believe

          8  you indicated that the Fifth Avenue Committee, or

          9  your group that you represent, has built about 600

         10  units.

         11                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How did you

         13  fund, you know, in general, a building that you have

         14  built.

         15                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Alphabet soup of City,

         16  State, programs primarily along  --  basically for

         17  every public dollar that we have in our projects, we

         18  leverage anywhere from $4.00 to $7.00 private

         19  dollars, mostly through community development

         20  financing through the banks.

         21                 But, we definitely use all the City

         22  and State programs, and, you know, Section 8

         23  certificates when they are available.

         24  Unfortunately, the federal programs are pretty non

         25  existent.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.  And

          3  most of your units are in the affordable range?

          4                 MS. DE LA UZ:  All of our units are

          5  in the affordable range.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What do you

          7  consider affordable?

          8                 MS. DE LA UZ:  The Fifth Avenue

          9  Committee considers affordable to be 80 percent of

         10  area median income and below.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         12                 MS. DE LA UZ:  It's true that in the

         13  units that we're currently developing, we do have

         14  more moderate and middle income units, in addition

         15  to the low- income units that we are developing.  We

         16  are doing more mixed- income projects, in

         17  particular, mixed- income homeownership projects.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  So,

         19  you're saying that 80 percent of AMI, that's

         20  basically what the Speaker's Bill and  --

         21                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  When you

         23  say moderate- income housing.  What do you consider

         24  moderate income?                        MS. DE LA

         25  UZ:  There's definitely differing perspectives of
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          2  what moderate- income housing is, but basically, it

          3  could be anywhere from 80 to about 120 percent of

          4  AMI.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's

          6  normal.

          7                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          9                 Thank you sir.  Thank you.  Thank you

         10  all for coming in.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Council Member

         12  James.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

         14                 Michelle, Michelle, de la Uz is

         15  building an affordable housing project in my

         16  District, and Michelle, as you know, most of my

         17  District is in the exclusion zone.

         18                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  On the project

         20  that we're working on, how would this affect that

         21  particular project.  Could you take advantage of

         22  this 421-A, or is it too late, or?

         23                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         24                 No. We could, and we would.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.  And let

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  me ask you this other discussion following up on

          3  Council Member Jackson's question, there is a

          4  discussion in the City Council, and particularly

          5  amongst the Black, Puerto Rican, and Asian Caucus,

          6  with regards to AMI.  Some members of the caucus

          7  believe that the AMI should be reduced to 50

          8  percent.  What are your thoughts?

          9                 MS. DE LA UZ:  I think  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Or any of the

         11  members of the panel.

         12                 MS. DE LA UZ:  I certainly believe,

         13  the Fifth Avenue Committee believes, that anything

         14  that brings us closer to the AMI that exists in

         15  Brooklyn, would be the right direction to move in.

         16                 I can tell you that, you know, the

         17  Fifth Avenue  -- in Brooklyn the are median income

         18  is around $35,000 to $37,000 a year for a family of

         19  four.  So, that's 50 percent of AMI, the current AMI

         20  is about $70,200, for a family of four.  In order to

         21  get to Brooklyn's median income, we'd have to get to

         22  50 percent of AMI.  To give you a sense, Fifth

         23  Avenue Committee maintains a housing notification

         24  list with thousands of people on it, and we track

         25  people's income, and what level of affordability
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          2  they're seeking, and the majority of people that are

          3  seeking housing are at 30 percent of area median

          4  income and below.

          5                 MR. LEWIS:  We are  --  the Atlantic

          6  Avenue project we referred to in Councilmen's

          7  Dilan's District, we are internally cross-

          8  subsidized and going with 80 percent at one and

          9  going out to 45 at AMI for all homeownership in our

         10  District.  But, yes, I agree with Michelle.

         11                 MR. VALDES:  I also agree with my

         12  colleagues.  We believe that with the Intro. 490,

         13  the affordability requirement would allow for the

         14  majority of immigrants to be able to afford it, with

         15  immigrants making average of $36,000.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  But the

         17  argument has been that we should give developers

         18  some discretion, and that's why we should set it at

         19  80 percent.  What is your response to that, and that

         20  in bond financing developers in all likelihood would

         21  probably set it at 50 percent.  I don't agree with

         22  that argument.  I believe it should be 50 percent.

         23  If you set it at 80, they'll set it at 80.  What are

         24  you thoughts?

         25                 MS. DE LA UZ:  I'm looking, I'm
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          2  thinking for a funny statement.  But, the reality is

          3    --  I mean, I don't think you tell the fox how to

          4  look at the hen house.  Right.  I mean, that's how

          5  it works.

          6                 MR. LEWIS:  You can see the

          7  cornerstone.  You look at the reality of what a lot

          8  of the cornerstone  -- they tend to skew higher, if

          9  they can toward the 80 percent level, and it's, you

         10  know.

         11                 There are some enlightened developers

         12  who have brought us in, for instance, in a Harlem

         13  project where we're bringing up extra subsidies to

         14  get the depressor, but they need the extra subsidy.

         15  They'll go to 80 percent if they can.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Just for the

         17  layman, 80 percent is, what, $65,000 for a family of

         18  four.  Yes?

         19                 MS. DE LA UZ: It's actually a little

         20  less, less.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  56?

         22                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Can I ask a
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          2  question, if you don't mind?

          3                 Now, I was asking those questions, I

          4  don't know if you were here when I was asking the

          5  Commissioner about that 50 percent versus 60  --

          6                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  And what

          8  have you, and so forth.  And you heard what his

          9  response was, that in order for developers to, I

         10  guess, access the federal monies, the federal

         11  monies,   --

         12                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  And I'm

         14  not a  --  I'm a layperson.  I'm not a housing

         15  expert.  You probably know  --  all of you, I'm sure

         16  know much more about housing than I do.  But, he was

         17  saying that in order to access federal dollars,

         18  developers had to build that 50 to 60 percent AMI.

         19                 MS. DE LA UZ:  The low- income

         20  housing tax credit.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.  In

         22  order to get those housing tax credits.  And that

         23  the group that they want to also include in there,

         24  that group between 60 percent AMI and 80 percent

         25  AMI, which we  --  I guess was around $43,000 to
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          2  $65,000.  But, he was saying that the majority of

          3  the developers, or the majority of the affordable

          4  units, are in that 50 to 60 in order to qualify for

          5  that fed. Money.

          6                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I heard you

          8  loud and clear as far as the average  --

          9                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --

         11  Constituent of Brooklyn, and my average constituent

         12  that I represent earns just a little bit less than

         13  that.  It's about 34, it could be even 33 now, or it

         14  could be around 35.  And so, I am very, very

         15  concerned about that category.  But, I also want to

         16   --  I don't want to exclude families that are

         17  earning between 43 and 65 also.

         18                 MS. DE LA UZ:  I don't think any of

         19  us want to exclude, I think partly what we're

         20  stating is that, if you set the bar only at 80,

         21  without some recognition  --  I mean, it's very true

         22  that the low- income housing tax credit targets

         23  families at 50 and 60 percent of AMI, that's

         24  absolutely the case.  And so, what you are getting

         25   --  you're getting that particular band.  You're
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          2  not getting people at a lower band, though.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

          4                 MS. DE LA Z:  If 421-A is targeting

          5  people at 80 percent of AMI, unless there's some

          6  recognition that part of the money needs to be

          7  targeted to folks at below  --  at 50 percent of AMI

          8  and below, then you're still not going to reach

          9  those at the lower end of the band.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.  What

         11  I heard yesterday was this testimony from, I guess,

         12  from some of the developers and other people, is

         13  that in order to really reach below the 50 percent

         14  AMI, you got to really have a lot of subsidies,

         15  Federal, State, and local subsidies in order build

         16   --

         17                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  Low-

         19  affordable housing for the individuals that are

         20  earning 50 percent and below, whatever, you know --

         21                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  Of the

         23  AMI  --

         24                 MS. DE LA UZ:  That's true.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- And that
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          2  absent of all of the Federal, State, and Local

          3  monies, in order to do that developers are not going

          4  to do it because they're not going to earn any

          5  money.

          6                 MS. DE LA UZ:  That's true.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          8                 MS. DE LA UZ:  I mean, the reality is

          9  that buildings cost money to operate.  Just because

         10  they're affordable to the tenant, doesn't mean that

         11  our oil rates, or our utilities rates, or our

         12  insurance rate, are any lower  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  One thing is

         14  operating, another thing is building.

         15                 MR. LEWIS:  Both sides have to be  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Both sides?

         17                 MS. DE LA UZ:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, thank

         19  you very much. Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair,

         20  Madam Chair.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         22  I'm feeling like a Madam today.  I have my days.

         23                 Any more questions from my

         24  colleagues.

         25                 We won't go there.
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          2                 Okay.  I will be calling the next and

          3  last panel. If someone wishes to testify and has not

          4  handed in, they can hand this sheet up to the

          5  Sergeant- At- Arms.

          6                 Sandra Acosta, Carol Lamberg, Gary

          7  Rosen, and Chaim Schwartz.

          8                 And I don't do a ladies first rule,

          9  so whoever wants to start testimony can, and just

         10  remember to identify yourself for the record.

         11                 Can you press the button, please.

         12                 MS. ACOSTA:  Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Sandra Acosta.  I am a principal of A&C

         14  Development Partners, a State certified minority-

         15  owned real estate development company.

         16                 I'm here today to testify against

         17  some of the proposed changes to the 421-A tax

         18  exemption program.

         19                 Prior to starting my development

         20  company, I was Vice President of the New York City

         21  Housing Partnership; and I continue to have a strong

         22  commitment to affordable housing and neighborhood

         23  revitalization.  I am a member of the New York State

         24  Affordable Housing Association, a Board Member of

         25  CHPC, and I was previously an officer of Community
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          2  Board 2 in the South Bronx.

          3                 I strongly support housing

          4  affordability.  However, I am opposed to some of the

          5  changes proposed to the 421-A program, that I

          6  believe would hurt small businesses, the City's

          7  residents, and the local economy.

          8                 As a small business, I'm particularly

          9  opposed to the 30 percent affordable housing

         10  requirement for families making less than 50 percent

         11  of AMI.  This requirement is extremely burdensome on

         12  any project, and, in my opinion, would result in a

         13  situation where only high- end luxury units could be

         14  built in the City to offset the 30/50 burden.

         15  Small, moderate- income housing developments would

         16  not be able to support the financial impacts of this

         17  policy, and would, therefore, not likely be built.

         18                 I'm currently working on a moderate-

         19  income project in Harlem where this would be the

         20  case.  If there were 30/50 requirement, considering

         21  development costs, financing costs, and the local

         22  market, it would be impossible for us to structure

         23  an economically viable project.  The project would

         24  not be built and no families, low or moderate-

         25  income, would be provided any housing on the site.
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          2                 The proposed 30 percent/50 percent

          3  affordability requirement would be particularly

          4  burdensome to small neighborhood developers.

          5  Neighborhood developers are not typically working on

          6  large hundred unit plus buildings.  Most are working

          7  on small market- rate projects and moderate- income

          8  communities.

          9                 Smaller projects already have a

         10  number of built- in disadvantages.  First, they do

         11  not have economies of scale.  The cost of building

         12  and maintaining a property on a square foot basis is

         13  actually higher on a small building, than on a

         14  larger building. Making a building economically

         15  viable is already a challenge on smaller projects.

         16  Requiring a 30 percent onsite affordability

         17  component to families making 50 percent or less,

         18  could create a situation where marginal projects

         19  become economically unfeasible and will not be

         20  built; therefore, impacting the availability of

         21  housing to all New Yorkers.  If small businesses

         22  cannot build projects with this proposed level of

         23  subsidy, they will be forced out of business at a

         24  cost to us and the local labor that we employ.

         25                 I am also opposed to the citywide
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          2  requirement. Although revitalization has taken root

          3  in some communities, there are many more low and

          4  moderate- income neighborhoods in the City where it

          5  has not.  There are still neighborhoods struggling

          6  to revitalize who want moderate- income families in

          7  their communities. A citywide 30/50 requirement

          8  would hurt the very neighborhoods that the proposed

          9  legislation is trying to protect.  Again, the burden

         10  of complying with the requirement would be cost-

         11  prohibitive to developers who would not be able to

         12  build that much needed housing.

         13                 For example, some neighborhoods in

         14  the South Bronx are just beginning to revitalize.

         15  New development projects in the South Bronx are

         16  still borderline feasible and restrictions on the

         17  421-A benefits to these projects would preclude most

         18  new construction.  I do not believe that this is the

         19  intent of the legislation.

         20                   As a developer and supporter of

         21  affordable housing, I am asking that the Council

         22  seriously consider the implications of the proposed

         23  legislative changes to the 421-A program.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you. When
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          2  the light is off, the mike is on.

          3                 MS. LAMBERG:  Okay.  Thanks.  I need

          4  all the technical assistance I can get.

          5                 I am Carol Lamberg, Executive

          6  Director of Settlement Housing Fund; and I am Policy

          7  Director of the New York Housing Conference.

          8                 But, I guess, I'm pretty much talking

          9  as a housing professional who has used every

         10  program, except, I guess, I haven't used the 421-A

         11  certificate program, to create, sustain, affordable

         12  housing and then work on the communities, develop

         13  schools, commercial, whatever you need to really

         14  create a good community. I've done this for more

         15  decades then I care to admit.

         16                 Having said that, I'm very  --  I was

         17  on the Commission to study 421-A, and was much more

         18  reticent than I usually am, because this is a very

         19  tough program to change.  I guess, when it was first

         20  enacted in the 70s when housing wasn't being

         21  developed, I was one of the young people who fought

         22  it.  I thought, giving breaks to luxury developers

         23  when you need low income housing in the lowest of

         24  the low.  What a terrible thing.

         25  But, as it changed over the years, and more
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          2  restrictions were put on it, I just hate to see a

          3  tool that might be used now, the off site program,

          4  to capture some of the luxury building, and create

          5  some very good units, off site.  I hate to see it

          6  destroyed until we know what that trust fund really

          7  is.

          8                 Shaun Donovan is somebody I respect

          9  more than almost any professional I have ever known,

         10  but I say, show me the money, what is this source.

         11  We saw Battery Park City used to create affordable

         12  excess revenues to create affordable housing,

         13  including my showcase development in the Bronx; but

         14  it was supposed to be $400 million over the first

         15  ten years and $148 million were actually produced,

         16  all for my buildings and some others in Harlem.    So

         17  , until I know what the source is, I'd be hesitant

         18  to do away with the off- site certificates, and I've

         19  heard some of my colleagues say that they want to

         20  continue to use it.  I'm annoyed at it because I've

         21  never been able to make it work, but that's just a

         22  personal problem.

         23                 I've read all the Bills.  I'm not an

         24  expert on where the zones are.  You need really good

         25  marketing people to know  -- to be able to predict,
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          2  and I don't think anyone has the crystal ball to

          3  know what can be sustained right now, with or

          4  without 421 a, so I won't speak on that.

          5                 I don't know about this 30 percent of

          6  very low income.  Just what you were saying,

          7  Councilmen Jackson.  Who can really distinguish that

          8  even the very poor, struggling homeless families

          9  need assistance more than the people who have worked

         10  their way up from low income to say moderate or even

         11  middle income, and they just can't find any place to

         12  live in the City, and it's a population you need to

         13  retain.  In our developments, ideally, when I can

         14  pencil the craziness together, I will have formerly-

         15  homeless families, with people up to 140 percent of

         16  AMI, if I can make the numbers work.  It's very,

         17  very hard to do, but there's a stable, cohesive,

         18  mixed income atmosphere, which really encourages

         19  upward mobility.

         20                 And what worries me most about the

         21  Speaker's Bill, are the geographic restrictions,

         22  that you have a preference for one District over

         23  another.  It's hard enough to make the programs

         24  work. Suppose there's a settlement house on  --  at

         25  Lenox Hill Neighborhood House on the Upper East
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          2  Side; and they get a site donated to them, and

          3  they're building low- income housing, and I've seen

          4  it done very, very well, in the middle of one of the

          5  luxury areas, and this is the only program that's

          6  available at that right time, at that right moment,

          7  I'd hate to see too many restrictions put on the new

          8  Bill.

          9                 We love simplicity.  We've never been

         10  able to achieve it, and I just would urge a lot of

         11  care  --  loving care that you're giving to this by

         12  staying now and even listening to me, when you're

         13  compromising and working with City Hall to create

         14  something that I hope will be useful in  --  as you

         15  said, creating and sustaining and maintaining.

         16  Creating, in some ways, as much as the brain damage

         17  exists, is the easier part.  It's sustaining it over

         18  decades, hopefully forever, affordable for the

         19  widest range of people who need housing.

         20                 And that's about it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

         22                 Before we get to questions, there's

         23  one more individual that wanted to testify on this

         24  subject before we close the public testimony.

         25  That's Mr. Carlton Brown, from Full Spectrum, New
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          2  York.

          3                 Even though I just said your name,

          4  you do need to restate your name again for the

          5  record, then you can go into your testimony.

          6                 MR. BROWN:  Okay.

          7                 My name is Carlton Brown.  I'm from

          8  Full Spectrum, New York.

          9                 We are a company that does  --

         10  develops affordable greenhousing, largely here in

         11  New York City, in Brooklyn, Harlem, wherever, the

         12  Bronx.

         13                 What I wanted to do, is tell you

         14  about some concerns that I have regarding  --  I

         15  mean they're a lot of versions of the Legislation

         16  that's been introduced, but the one about which I

         17  have the largest concern, I think, is the City

         18  Council Bill, which says that the 421-A is going to

         19  require Borough Citywide, that there be a 30 percent

         20  assignment for housing, that's 50 percent below  --

         21  50 percent the median income.

         22                 Now, on the one hand, the vast

         23  majority of our work that we do is considered

         24  workforce housing.  It addresses the needs of

         25  working people in New York, firemen, teachers,
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          2  police officers, city clerks, clerical workers, and

          3  people that certainly would not be at the upper end

          4  of the wage structure in New York City.  But, on the

          5  other hand, where I understand that there is a need

          6  for more affordable housing, my concern is about the

          7  effect of unintended consequences.  And what I see

          8  here in New York is, ultimately, you can't do

          9  anything other than what the financial structures

         10  permit you to do.  The cost of housing is fairly

         11  expensive to build, and it doesn't really matter

         12  whether I'm building in Bedford Stuyvesant, or in

         13  Harlem, or on 96th Street, the cost to build, in

         14  terms of hard costs, is going to be someplace around

         15  $225, $235 a square foot, unless of course you're

         16  saying you're going to do it sort of in the

         17  underground economy.  And I don't think that that

         18  would be what the City Council would intend for

         19  people to do to force developers to build in the

         20  underground economy.  Because, I think you're on

         21  record as supporting a living wage and assuring that

         22  people that work on construction sites, work in a

         23  safe environment where they get a fair wage.

         24                 So, if you make the assumption that

         25  those things are important, then your costs are
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          2  going to be that.

          3                 The City, essentially, over the last

          4  ten years has used up its inventory of cheap lands.

          5  So, for any developer like myself, what we have to

          6  do is, we have to go buy land privately. And, you

          7  know, there's not a lot of land; but, ultimately,

          8  where a lot of the development is taking place, is

          9  in areas of the City where the City has created new

         10  land, through rezoning.  And through these rezoning

         11  efforts, what you've done is for an existing

         12  property owner, you've essentially increased the

         13  value of their property, and so it's only a limited

         14  amount that they're going to sell it for in terms of

         15  the bottom end.

         16                 So, land is selling for $100 a square

         17  foot.  So, when you look at your $100 per square

         18  foot, add that to your $225 $235, add that to

         19  another 25 percent soft costs, and you end up with

         20  housing that has to be sold to break even almost at

         21  $400- $500 a square foot.

         22                 The subsidies that are available in

         23  the marketplace, if you're trying to create

         24  homeownership, is largely from AAC.  You know, if

         25  you're going to do limited- equity co- ops, there's
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          2  some City money that's available, but, ultimately,

          3  it's a real challenge to get down below 75- 80

          4  percent of median income and still keep it

          5  affordable, because the thing that happens is, the

          6  interest rate market has changed.  You know, four

          7  years ago, when we were selling homes with, you

          8  know, five percent, four and a half percent

          9  interest, it was very different.  What banks are

         10  asking us to underwrite to   --  even City agencies

         11  are asking us to underwrite, to a seven percent

         12  interest rate.  So, when you do that, it changes the

         13  economics of it, and so when you overlay my concern

         14  with having 421 everywhere, and to have that

         15  moderate, that 50  --  that 30 percent at 50 percent

         16  of the median income, it really stops development.

         17                 In fact, in a very personal case,

         18  there's the personal land that we were in contract

         19  for on East Fulton Street in Bedford- Stuyvesant,

         20  and it just stopped us.  We didn't go through with

         21  the contract, because, ultimately, we were going to

         22  build it as rental housing, right, and as rental

         23  housing that we would build there, it just couldn't

         24  carry the weight.  The differential between a rental

         25  unit and on East Fulton Street in Brooklyn, and a
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          2  rental unit on East 96th Street, is huge.  On East

          3  Fulton Street, we will get $1,600 a month for a

          4  thousand square foot, two bedroom.  On East 96th

          5  Street, I will get $5,000 to $6,000 a month.  So,

          6  the differential between that and the cost to build

          7  for a low- income housing, is just too huge for the

          8  market to cover the differential.

          9                 So, ultimately, one of the things

         10  people say they are concerned about market- rate

         11  housing, but market- rate housing is not a uniform

         12  measure.  It's like saying "what is a market- rate

         13  car?".  You can pay for a Rolls Royce, you can pay

         14  for a Volkswagen.  Ultimately, the market for

         15  housing is driven by location and the cost of land.

         16                 Where we pay in Bedford- Stuyvesant,

         17  $100 per square foot of developable FAR, buildable

         18  FAR, in other communities you pay $200 or $300.  At

         19  $100 per square foot of buildable FAR, you say 1,000

         20  square foot apartment, net, grosses out to 1,500

         21  square feet.  So, at $100, you spent $150,000 on

         22  land alone, right?  And when the City started

         23  working with many of these 421-A programs, there was

         24  free land.  We built, essentially, on free land

         25  because the City had this huge inventory.  So when
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          2  you add the land cost that you have to get acquiring

          3  the private market, when you add the construction

          4  costs that have gone up because of bulk materials

          5  and labor, what you're doing is making this land and

          6  these communities undevelopable in some cases.

          7                 I have something that summarizes all

          8  that in a lot less words.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  We haven't

         10  received a copy of your testimony, and I would  --

         11                 MR. BROWN:  Oh, yes.  I only have one

         12  copy.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  You only have one

         14  copy?

         15                 MS. LAMBERG:  Mine's left in my

         16  office.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Yes.  We can get

         18  it.  But if you --  Okay.  I guess maybe we could

         19  just give it to Terzah so it can be entered into  --

         20    for the record.

         21                 I guess  --  I just have just a brief

         22  question, then I'll go to Council Member Jackson.

         23                 For Ms. Acosta and Mr. Brown, what

         24  type of housing do you develop?

         25                 MR. BROWN:  Well, none  --  a little
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          2  bit of everything.  We've done condos, we've done

          3  two- family homes, we've done three- family homes.

          4  A lot of our work we initially did with New York

          5  City Housing Partnership, and HPD.  The vast

          6  majority of the work we're doing now is on privately

          7  owned land, it's generally considered affordable.

          8  Typically, we have a project that's in construction

          9  where 50 percent of it is affordable for households

         10  between 80 percent, actually between 75 percent of

         11  median and 130 percent of the median income, and the

         12  balance is market rate, which is in Harlem.

         13                 In Bedford- Stuyvesant, we're looking

         14  at things, and it's a little bit more challenging on

         15  the numbers, particularly on the rentals, because

         16  the rental, you know, people, just -  there hasn't

         17  been a lot of rental property there in terms of

         18  multi family.  But, the vast majority of what we do

         19  right now is multi family, whether it's a rental or

         20  condo.  It just varies depending on the location.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

         22  Ms. Acosta.

         23                 MS. ACOSTA:  My development company

         24  is fairly new. We're only three years old, but the

         25  projects we're working on, some of them are low,
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          2  moderate, affordable housing and some of them are

          3  private, market rate deals on private land.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  No.  But, I mean

          5  in terms of the size.  Are you building condos, are

          6  you building two family  --

          7                 MS. ACOSTA:  Oh.  Okay.  We're

          8  building two- family homes and condos.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

         10

         11  Councilmen  --

         12                 MS. ACOSTA:  But, mostly

         13  homeownership, I think for us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Homeownership?

         15                 Council Member Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         17  Thank you.

         18                 Good evening.

         19                 Ms. Acosta, you mention the fact that

         20    --  you talked about 50 percent and below, under

         21  486, Intro. 486, the AMI that's being discussed is

         22  80 percent AMI.  In Annabel Palma's Bill, it's being

         23  discussed 70/30.  Does the 80/20 fit into your

         24  category, where you  --  would that  --  would 80/20

         25  impact you, either positively or negatively, versus
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          2  70/30?

          3                 MS. ACOSTA:  I think under current

          4  market conditions, which I think Carlton did a great

          5  job of explaining, I think even the 20 percent can

          6  become a problem, because not all developments are

          7  subsidized.  I mean, if you look at City- owned

          8  property or deals where you're getting City, State,

          9  or Federal funds, typically those funds have

         10  requirements linked to them for an affordability

         11  guideline.

         12                 I think one of our concerns has more

         13  to do with what happens on private site, where

         14  you're not getting the subsidies to make units

         15  affordable.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         17                 MS. ACOSTA:  How then do you make

         18  these units affordable with that kind of, you know,

         19  at 20  --  at 50 percent of AMI  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No.  I'm

         21  talking about  -- I asked you to consider the

         22  scenario, assuming that we pass in Albany next year,

         23  says, its 80/20.  Within the exclusion zone that's

         24  recommended by the City Council, which is in Harlem,

         25  is 135th Street and below.
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          2                 MS. ACOSTA:  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:   How did

          4  that impact your business?

          5                 MS. ACOSTA:  Okay.  I think that that

          6  would still be a problem for some of the projects

          7  we're working on.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In the

          9  inclusion zone, or outside of the inclusion zone?

         10                 MS. ACOSTA:  Well, in the inclusion

         11  zone.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In the

         13  inclusion zone. Because then you would be forced to,

         14  if going with the 421-A to

         15  do  --

         16                 MS. ACOSTA:  Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  20

         18  percent.  What is the average number of units that

         19  you're building in your development that you're

         20  building?

         21                 MS. ACOSTA:  70.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  70.

         23                 MS. ACOSTA:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And all of

         25  the developments that --  you mentioned one unit in
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          2  Harlem that you're working on now.  Which one is

          3  that?

          4                 MS. ACOSTA:  On 145th and 7th.  We're

          5  going through rezoning now for that project.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Oh.

          7                 MS. ACOSTA:  But, in that project we

          8  are  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  On 7th or

         10  8th?

         11                 MS. ACOSTA:  Adam Clayton Powell and

         12  145th.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         14                 MS. ACOSTA:  On that project, we are

         15  actually going to do an affordable component, even

         16  though it's a privately- owned parcel, privately

         17  financed, no subsidy.  We're trying to work with the

         18  community to do that.  But, you know, one of the

         19  things that became a reality in trying to work with

         20  the community and lower or increase affordability in

         21  that neighborhood, is that it's a high price to pay

         22  considering the cost of the land, the cost of

         23  development, and the unknowns about the market right

         24  now.

         25                 So, I think there's a very clear
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          2  difference between private and subsidized projects

          3  that needs to be taken into consideration.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And in that

          5  project you're going after  --  obviously you're

          6  entitled to, now, the 421- a.

          7                 MS. ACOSTA:  That's right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, you're

          9  going for 421 - that's out of the exclusion zone.

         10                 MS. ACOSTA:  That's right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, are you

         12  going for the 15 years, where you're not doing any

         13  sub  --  any affordable, or are you going for the 25

         14  years and doing affordable?

         15                 MS. ACOSTA:  We're going to try to do

         16  affordable.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Affordable.

         18                 MS. ACOSTA:  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And you're

         20  saying that's on 145th Street and 7th Avenue?

         21                 MS. ACOSTA:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Which

         23  corner?

         24                 MS. ACOSTA:  Southeast.  The Pioneer

         25  Supermarket site.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  The

          3  southeast  --  okay. Yes.

          4                 Okay.  Because, I was saying that,

          5  you know, I represent that area.  But, I represent

          6  on the west side of 7th Avenue.

          7                 MS. ACOSTA:  Right.  No.  I know.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You know

          9  that, right?

         10                 MS. ACOSTA:  I do know that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         12  That's why I was asking.

         13                 So, what I'm hearing from you is that

         14    --  and from both of you, and I know Full

         15  Spectrum,  I know this young lady also. But  --

         16                 MS. LAMBERG:  Thank you.

         17                 That I'm young.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Both.  Both.

         19                 But, what I'm hearing is that, if

         20  this City Council adopts a 70/30, which is the

         21  numbers that are in Annabel Palma's Bill, and,

         22  assuming that those numbers were adopted by Albany,

         23  are you saying to me that we are going to hurt the

         24  people that I represent, meaning, the people that I

         25  represent are in the area where you're going to
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          2  build right now, where the average family earns, you

          3  know, under $34,000 a year.  As a developer, as a

          4  minority developer, as a minority contractor,

          5  developers that build housing, market and

          6  affordable, could both you deal with market and

          7  affordable?  Is that correct?

          8                 MS. ACOSTA:  Yes.

          9                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBERS JACKSON:  You're

         11  saying to me that, that if we pass that, that that

         12  Legislation, if it was adopted by Albany, would hurt

         13  our constituents in the short term and in the long

         14  term?

         15                 MS ACOSTA:  I think that that's

         16  exactly what I'm saying.  I'm saying that  --  let's

         17  just assume my project wasn't in that zone.  Let's

         18  say it was on 135th.  If my project was on 135th

         19  Street,  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Within the

         21  expanded exclusion zone?

         22                 MS. ACOSTA:  That's right.  I could

         23  not make the numbers work.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You wouldn't

         25  do it.
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          2                 MS. ACOSTA:  And I would not be able

          3  to do that project.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Would you

          5  just go with a market, it you just could not do the

          6  project?

          7                 MS. ACOSTA:  I just could not do the

          8  project with that requirement.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  As a

         10  minority  contractor.

         11                 MS. ACOSTA:  That's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         13                 Any comments from anyone on that?

         14                 MR. BROWN:  Well, yes.  I don't know

         15  her site, but  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No.  I'm

         17  talking about  -- not about your site.  I'm  --

         18                 MR. BROWN:  Well, let me say this.

         19  You know, again, you know, my point is that every

         20  community is very different, and to treat the City

         21  as one large community where everything is equal,

         22  just, you know, doesn't make a lot of sense.  I

         23  mean, and I think that Fulton Street, in Brooklyn is

         24  a great example.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

                                                            159

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Okay.

          3                 MR. BROWN:  On East Fulton Street, on

          4  the parcel that we're in contract for  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  MR. Brown, you

          6  voice is very strong, but I still would like to ask

          7  you to speak into the

          8  mike  --

          9                 MR. BROWN:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  --  Because it

         11  has to be --

         12                 MR. BROWN:  On East Fulton Street,

         13  the parcel that we're talking about, is near, I

         14  guess between Bedford and Franklin Avenue, right?

         15  And it's okay.  It's the neighborhood that needs

         16  housing.  The area is being rezoned now, and one of

         17  the purposes was to create opportunities for more

         18  multi- family housing, because when you look at that

         19  area, which is generally Bedford-Stuyvesant, there

         20  hasn't been a lot of multi- family housing other

         21  than just specifically low-income housing; and the

         22  brownstone stock, like most brownstone stock, has

         23  gone up.

         24                 So, the idea is provide housing that

         25  working people, you know, not Wall Street working
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          2  people, but just regular folks can work at, right?

          3  Well, the challenge on that, on that particular

          4  property, is very different from the challenge it

          5  would be if I went west on Fulton Street, six blocks

          6  to the BAM Culture District, to the heart of your

          7  District, right?  Because, if we looked at what  --

          8  and whether we were doing rentals or whether we were

          9  doing home ownership, it would be the same issue.

         10                 As I said, at BAM, that site there on

         11  Fulton Street, you could probably get on a rental,

         12  about  --  the maximum you would get would be about

         13  what you would get with an HDC subsidized rental

         14  project.  You'd probably get $15- 1600 for a two

         15  bedroom.  No matter how much you wanted to rent that

         16  for $4,000 or $3,000, so that you could afford to

         17  carry more lower-income units, you can't. You know,

         18  there wouldn't be any takers, right? And that's just

         19  a matter of moving, you know, what is that, six

         20  blocks, six blocks down the road?  And it just

         21  changes that much.

         22                 So, what I say is true today, five

         23  years from now, might not be true.  And so, the City

         24  is really a sort of dynamic place that I think one

         25  of the things that it calls for, and one version of
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          2  the Legislation is periodic look-backs to see how

          3  the City has changed.  Because, ultimately, the City

          4  is dynamic.  It's never  --  hopefully, it's

          5  dynamic, hopefully it's changing, right?

          6                 So, I think which ever Bill you go

          7  with, if it's right for today, it probably won't be

          8  right for tomorrow.  So, I think that's one of the

          9  important things that you need to look at as the

         10  process is changing.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: One of the

         12  things that we're discussing in Intro. 486, which is

         13  Speaker Quinn and Chair Dilan's Bill, is a housing

         14  trust fund, or housing fund.  And the talk down is

         15  $400 million.  I don't know if you were here for the

         16  testimony of the Commissioner, he had said $400

         17  million would build about, roughly 4  -- 700 and 300

         18  units of affordable housing outside of the exclusion

         19  zone, within the first ten years of the housing

         20  trust fund, and that within 20 years approximately

         21  21,000 units, and that the fund will be there

         22  forever".  And I asked him, I said, "What if the

         23  fund was increased to about $600 million, how many

         24  units could that build, per  --  could that build

         25  outside of the exclusion zone?"
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          2                 Now the exclusion zone, as indicated,

          3  that's referred to in Intro. 486, is south of 135th

          4  Street, and so the NPP and REMIC zones are in

          5  Northern Manhattan, the Bronx, and Brooklyn and

          6  other areas like that, and Chinatown area a little

          7  bit. They're talking about those are the areas that

          8  that housing fund would build in, and they would

          9  build many, many thousands of more units, thousands

         10  of more units of affordable housing than built under

         11  the certificate program, as it currently exists in

         12  421-A

         13                 Do you have any thoughts about that

         14  building fund, and compared to the certificate

         15  program?  And I ask that of any one of you, if you

         16  have any comments on that?

         17                 MR. BROWN:  Do you want me to speak?

         18  Okay.  Well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  If you know

         20  about it. And if you don't  --

         21                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  I know about it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         23                 MR. BROWN:  You know, the magic of

         24  numbers, right, is one of the things that is so  --

         25  always attractive to really get hung up on a number,
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          2  that makes projections about sectors of the economy

          3  that we know nothing about.  You know, not even the

          4  Fed can make a projection that's five years out,

          5  about where the economy will be, and what the cost

          6  of housing will be to produce, you know, in New York

          7  City.

          8                 So, I think to make really strong

          9  claims about what you can do in 25 years or 20

         10  years, is real difficult for me.  But what I will

         11  say is, the ability of that fund to produce housing

         12  is contingent on how it's used.  And, ultimately,

         13  the best way, I think, to use public investment, is

         14  to leverage private investment. And there's a lot of

         15  private investments, whether it's institutional

         16  pension funds, New York State is a very active in

         17  doing housing in the City.  But funds like CALPURS

         18  (Phonetic) and Teachers, et cetera.  So, if you use

         19  that money in ways so that it can leverage up

         20  private investment, whether it be on the debt of the

         21  equity side, I think you will produce a lot more

         22  housing.

         23                 The challenge with that, is that when

         24  you're trying to leverage up private investment, the

         25  more bootstraps that you have in terms of
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          2  restrictions on it, the more difficult it is.  So,

          3  how you, how you define, you know, $400 million, how

          4  are you going to use it, is really, once you answer

          5  that questions, you can say, --  you can have a

          6  better idea of how you can use it  --  I mean how

          7  many houses it will produce.

          8                 And what I  --  from, you know, the

          9  things that I've read, I'm not clear exactly how the

         10  trust fund will be used, right? If it's used no more

         11  effectively than the Battery Park City Trust Fund

         12  was used, then it's not going to produce any

         13  housing, right?

         14                 And so, every trust fund is not equal

         15  to every other trust fund, right?  So, I think one

         16  thing  you really have to look at is, don't look at

         17  the numbers, but also look at process and programs,

         18  to see how it's going to be used, and then you can

         19  talk rationally about what it will produce.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Interesting

         21  comment.  That you brought in the Battery Park City.

         22                 I'm sorry.

         23                 MS. LAMBERG:  Let me also  --  what

         24  income group  -- what income group you're trying to

         25  reach.  You know, if you're trying to reach low-
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          2  income groups without any Section 8, you're going to

          3  need  --  with your numbers and the land starting at

          4  a hundred a foot  --  I'm trying to work on a site

          5  in the Bronx at $48 a foot, and I need a $150,000 of

          6  unit subsidy.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

          8                 MS. LAMBERG:  And this would be

          9  plank, not  --

         10                 MR. BROWN:  Nothing fancy.

         11                 MS. LAMBERG:  --  Brick bearing wall.

         12  I don't think I could afford all the green stuff,

         13  unless I got very good tax benefits back, and other

         14  investors.  And, yes, I hate the word leverage,

         15  because I'm good at it.  It's a waste of time to

         16  have to go to 20 different sources, when I could go

         17  to one.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I have two

         19  more questions.

         20                 MS. LAMBERG:  You got to do it. (sic)

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  With

         22  respects to  --  I've heard here the Commissioner,

         23  and in looking at his powerpoint presentation, when

         24  we were discussing the issue of affordability and,

         25  you know, the percentages, 80/20 versus 70/30, and
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          2  what about 75/25, and he was saying that for the

          3  developers, which they're not mandated to build,

          4  they would have to build because there's an

          5  incentive to build.  And the incentive is what,

          6   "profit".  What can they earn off of it.  What is

          7  the average, and you're developers, what is the

          8  average percentage, if you can so state, that the

          9  average developer earns off of building a building?

         10                 MR. BROWN:  Well.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Where it

         12  makes it -- it makes it profitable for you to build.

         13                 MR. BROWN.  Yes.  When everything is

         14  working well, right, and the sort of market that

         15  we're in and the sort of workforce housing, you're

         16  looking at internal rates or return on equity

         17  invested, someplace in the mid- teens to low

         18  twenties.

         19                 So  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Not higher

         21  than that?

         22                 MR. BROWN:  No.  It's just, you know

         23   --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:   Mid-teen

         25   --
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          2                 MR. BROWN:  To low twenties.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.  And if

          4  you looked at some other housing developments here

          5  that aren't in this sector, right, you'd be looking

          6  at mid-thirties, you know, on internal rate.

          7                 I'm sorry.  Like, give me an example.

          8                 MR. BROWN:  35 percent, 30 --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Where would

         10  that be built at?  I'm sorry.

         11                 MR. BROWN:  Luxury housing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Oh.  Luxury

         13  housing.  Okay.

         14                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  But on the  --

         15                 MS. LAMBERG:  I should get into a new

         16  business.

         17                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  But, on the sort of

         18  workforce affordable housing, you know, you're

         19  looking at mid- teens returns.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And my final

         21  question is this, and I don't know how long have you

         22  been sitting here today, but I sat through all of

         23  the hearing last night, and the final panel were two

         24  constituents, and one spoke in Spanish, and

         25  individuals translated for her  --  I thought it was

                                                            168

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  her daughter, but it was an organizer, one of my

          3  constituents.  And another individual, this Black

          4  gentlemen, looked to be my age, a little older, and

          5  he said he was here all day long, and even at the

          6  press conference.  So, he heard all of the testimony

          7  of the Commissioner and the Deputy Mayor, and the

          8  developers and other people, and advocates, and he

          9  heard us answer questions, and you know, back and

         10  forth.

         11                 So, her heard everything.  He said to

         12  us, he said, "I sat through all of this, and I don't

         13  believe them".  Meaning he doesn't believe the

         14  developers, and now you're developers, and not only

         15  are you developers, but your Black and Hispanic, in

         16  essence you're people-of-color developers. And the

         17  average person I represent, that look at in

         18  Washington Heights, that they cannot afford the

         19  $1,500, $1,600 rent, not even talking about new,

         20  we're talking about the rent-stabilized apartments,

         21  and they see the new developments coming on, and

         22  they know they can't afford it, so they don't even

         23  apply, okay?

         24                 If they're following this debate on

         25  this subject area, you know, I don't think that they
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          2  would believe it either. And one of the developers,

          3  or the Commissioner, said that one of the problems

          4  is this is real estate development taxes, and you

          5  have to really understand this and be, I guess,

          6  somewhat be in the business, to know that it's not

          7  profitable.

          8                 My question to you is this: "How can

          9  I communicate to my constituents, and how can I be

         10  assured that what you're saying is true, so that

         11  whatever decision that I make, let's assume that I

         12  make the decision of going, and just the body said,

         13  70/30, and Albany said 70/30, you're telling me, I

         14  believe I asked the question before, that we would

         15  be hurting ourselves in the long run?".

         16                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  Well, let me say

         17  this.  I probably have been doing this 20 years,

         18  there  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         20                 MR. BROWN:  --  About now.  And every

         21  project that I've done, has been in one of these

         22  communities that is affected by this.  I haven't

         23  been doing  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Are you

         25  talking about communities of color?
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          2                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          4                 MR. BROWN:  Brownsville, Bedford-

          5  Stuyvesant, you know, Harlem, et cetera.  You know,

          6  that's where we work, right. And if you would talk

          7  to most people that know our company and know our

          8  record, right?  They would say, what we say, you can

          9  believe, because they've  --  we've been there,

         10  given our word, and produced some product for the

         11  last 20 years, right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And where is

         13  your office, your headquarters located at?

         14                 MR. BROWN:  124th and Lenox Avenue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right in

         16  Harlem?

         17                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         19                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         21                 Any other comments from anyone else?

         22  I'm sorry.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  That's my role

         24   -- That's my role.  At this point we're going to go

         25  Council Member James.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm sorry.

          3                 Yes, Mr. Chair.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Let me just

          5  say, full disclosure, Carlton is a member of my

          6  church, where we worship in Brooklyn together.  I've

          7  known Carlton for some time, and have worked with

          8  him on a number of developments projects.  And so,

          9  often times when I have questions with regards to

         10  affordable housing, I turn to Carlton.

         11                 Carlton, the question that I have is,

         12  you know the dynamics of my District, you know

         13  what's happening in my District, you also, I'm

         14  certain, know that I was able to get the boundaries

         15  extended to include Fort Greene, Quinn Hill,

         16  Prospect Heights, but was not successful in Crown

         17  Heights.  The questions that I have is, I mean, I'm

         18  one that's on the Palma Bill, and have been pushing

         19  for this 30 percent but I know pause because you

         20  tell me that it's counter-productive.  The questions

         21  that I have is, "if we increase the AMI to 80

         22  percent or above, and leave the percentage at 30

         23  percent, would that achieve, would that redress the

         24  problem?"

         25                 MR. BROWN:  In your District, it
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          2  would, I think. Because, in your District  -- your

          3  District is a little wealthier than a lot of other

          4  Districts in Central Brooklyn.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's a

          6  recent phenomena.

          7                 MR. BROWN.  Oh, yes.  Because that

          8   --  you know, we've been there a while, right?  And

          9  it wasn't always that way, right?  And so, in your

         10  District that probably works, but, again, go just

         11  outside your District to Council Member Vann's

         12  District, and it's a problem.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  It's District

         14  by District. So, I guess it's not  -- it's, what is

         15  it, one size does not fit all?

         16                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  If I had to give a

         17  message, you know, here today, that would be it.

         18  One size does not fit all on things like this

         19  because every community is not equal.

         20                 MS. LAMBERG:  Every site is

         21  different.

         22                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  Yes.  Every  --

         23  yes,  is very different, you know.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, if the AMI

         25  remains at 80 in certain Districts, 30 percent would
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          2  work.  If it goes down to 50 percent, then 30

          3  percent would not work.

          4                 MR. BROWN:  Well, yes.  And, and what

          5  I would just give as reference, you know, with full

          6  disclosure, also, is  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES::  You're

          8  working on a couple of projects  --

          9                 MR. BROWN.  Yes.  We've looked at

         10  that very formula at the BAM North site, right?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

         12                 MR. BROWN:  And when  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Full

         14  disclosure, the BAM North site is a site in the BAM

         15  LDC, that the developers, the community advocates,

         16  elected officials, were all working on, and that's

         17  the whole discussion surrounding the BAM LDC and the

         18  controversy.

         19                 MR. BROWN:  And that works 100

         20  percent at the BAM North site, you know.  Because of

         21  where that site is, it's near transportation, it's

         22  at the center of everything, right?  And so, it

         23  works there.  But, at other sites, you know, it

         24  probably, it probably would not work, you know, just

         25  outside your District.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Does it work

          3  on  -- I see BRP signed on to it, my good friends

          4  Jeff and Merideth,  --

          5                 MR. BROWN:  Merideth.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  --  They're

          7  doing a site on Myrtle Avenue.

          8                 MR. BROWN:  Whose site are they doing

          9  on Myrtle?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Myrtle   --

         11                 MR. BROWN:  Myrtle and Clinton?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Myrtle and

         13  Carlton.

         14                 MR. BROWN:  Carlton?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  But, I think

         16  it's too late because they're already in the ground.

         17                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.  They  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  The blew it.

         19                 MR. BROWN:  Yes. Yes, right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.  Thanks.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Council Member

         22  Felder.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 I just wanted to say that I did come
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          2  away, and although I'm not on the Committee, I found

          3  that the testimony, as the time goes on, usually at

          4  a hearing the testimony, you get  -- I mean as a

          5  Councilmen, certainly you become more and more

          6  lethargic and tired listening to the testimony.  I

          7  find the testimony just the opposite.  I found it,

          8  like I think this is the last group, so, so,

          9  interesting and revealing, that I'm very happy that

         10  I stayed to the end.  And I want to thank the Chair

         11  for, for this hearing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. LAMBERG:  The questions

         14  Councilman Jackson asked, one of Terzah's colleagues

         15  asked me to brief Mayor Bloomberg when he was

         16  running  --  first running for Mayor, and I brought

         17  a group of colleagues in, and said, sure, we can do

         18  that, some attorneys.  And he said, "Well, I want to

         19  do everything I can that doesn't take any money".

         20  And I said, "then there's nothing you can do, other

         21  than, you know, it would be nice to reform the

         22  Building Department", and I quickly went through a

         23  proforma that your constituent might of asked for.

         24                 And I was in the midst of building

         25  something six stories in Crown Heights on St. John's
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          2  Place, opposite the shelter that we own on New York

          3  and  --  it was where a shelter improved the

          4  neighborhood.  We built permanent housing.  It was

          5  at that time $200,000 a unit.  And we had a subsidy

          6  from the trust fund of $75,000, bringing it down to

          7  a $125,000, and equity, bringing it down another

          8  $70,000.  And I went through numbers, what it cost

          9  for heat, what the super cost.  It was $6,000 a

         10  unit, because we maintain very well, to pay your

         11  super, your heat, your insurance, and if we were

         12  using a private loan, at that time at seven percent

         13  interest, the rent would have had to be $2,000 a

         14  month to carry that.  And then I said the people in

         15  Crown Heights can't afford the $2,000 a month, you

         16  can't do anything without money, thank you very

         17  much.  And he wrote a very nice letter back that

         18  housing was going to be a big part of his campaign.

         19  I can't say it was cause and effect, but I think

         20  your constituent could, when you show him what heat

         21  costs, what insurance, what maintenance, and what

         22  land and debt service cost, it adds up to a lot of

         23  money, and you need so much, you need tax exemption.

         24  And that won't bring it down far enough to reach

         25   --, to pencil it out so his developments will be
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          2  able to afford the 30 units.

          3                 I've argued for that, and I think you

          4  can in the Upper East Side, West Side of Manhattan,

          5  where you have $5,000 a month, they should be 30

          6  percent there.  But in the other areas, a guy can't

          7   --  I'm impressed that you make the teens.  I get

          8  no profit, and I can't make it work.  You know, I

          9  can't afford to lose money, because I don't have a

         10  big endowment, but, even at a zero profit, I'm

         11  struggling.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         13                 I'd like to thank the panel for the

         14  testimony.  And I think that there is at least

         15  consensus among the Members left that this  --  we

         16  saved the best panel for last.

         17                 Just a little record keeping. I have

         18  to acknowledge that we've received testimony for the

         19  record from Miss Jenny Laurie, from the Met Council

         20  on Housing.  We've received testimony from Patrick

         21  Siconolfi from the Community Housing Improvement

         22  Program, Inc., Ina Irrolovich (phonetic), from the

         23  American Association of Jews From The Former USSR,

         24  Sarah Desmond, for the Housing Conservation

         25  Coordinators, Mr. Michael McGuire from the Mason
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          2  Tenders' District Council of Greater New York, and

          3  Ms. Olli Ross, a Brooklyn resident.  All these items

          4  that we received will be entered into the record,

          5  and at this time we are going to lay aside all

          6  legislative items before the Committee.

          7                 This Hearing is adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing adjourned at 5:45 p.m.)

          9                 (Written Testimony Read Into the

         10  Record)

         11                 MS. LAURIE:  My name is Jenny Laurie,

         12  and I am the Director of the Metropolitan Council on

         13  Housing.  Met Council is a tenants' rights

         14  organization; we run a telephone hotline and a walk-

         15  in clinic for tenants with housing problems, and we

         16  work with tenant associations in buildings facing

         17  service reductions, lack of repairs, large rent

         18  increases, and eviction threats.  While Met Council

         19  supports expanding the affordability requirements of

         20  the 421a program, I would like to address the 20

         21  year limitation.

         22                 Over the years, Met Council has

         23  worked with several tenant associations in buildings

         24  that were rent stabilized and affordable due to tax

         25  abatement programs.  We regularly receive calls from

                                                            179

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  tenants in new buildings with affordable housing

          3  restrictions or rent stabilization thanks to the

          4  421a benefits, and I have worked with tenant

          5  associations in buildings that were in the 80/20

          6  program where the combined mortgage and tax

          7  abatement restrictions provided for rent

          8  stabilization and affordable housing for 20% of the

          9  tenants.  These tenants never contact us about bad

         10  services or lack of repairs- they contact us because

         11  they are facing eviction with the imminent

         12  expiration of the tax abatement.

         13                 In the past year I have met with

         14  three tenant groups in Manhattan where the

         15  restrictions have expired:  Parc Place in Battery

         16  Park City, Columbus Green on the Upper West Side,

         17  and the Sheffield in Midtown Manhattan.  In all

         18  three buildings, the tenants have had to resort to

         19  extensive legal work to stave off the threat of

         20  eviction from their affordable homes.

         21                 The affordable housing that these

         22  buildings offer is great- but it is temporary.  In

         23  order to qualify, the tenants have to prove that

         24  they are of limited income- which also means that

         25  they are effectively locked out of the city's
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          2  regular housing market. All three of these buildings

          3  will soon be converted to luxury condominiums.  Most

          4  of the rent regulated or limited income tenants have

          5  had to move out, or will soon be forced to move out,

          6  of these buildings.  One tenant in Columbus Green

          7  told me that his apartment faced the back of the

          8  building where he has witnessed over the past couple

          9  of months a parade of moving vans at the service

         10  entrance as tenants have moved out en mass.  When I

         11  go to meetings at these buildings, I hear about

         12  families who have to take their kids out of the

         13  local schools, disabled tenants who can't find

         14  another affordable apartment in an accessible

         15  building, and elderly tenants who feel hopeless and

         16  without prospects.

         17                 Today, the city faces buy- outs or

         18  expirations in almost all of its government-

         19  assisted housing stock:  Tens of thousands of units

         20  are going to be lost when restrictions expire for

         21  the last remaining Mitchell- Lama rentals and co-

         22  ops, the HUD subsidized buildings and the many

         23  buildings that received tax abatements years ago.  I

         24  hope this Committee will consider how important it

         25  is to make future restrictions permanent.  We cannot
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          2  build our way out of the city's housing crisis

          3  unless we focus on preserving the affordable housing

          4  that we have- and that means, in part, making

          5  permanent all the new affordable housing that is

          6  assisted or restricted by government subsidies.

          7                 (Written Testimony Read Into The

          8  Record)

          9                 MR. SICONOLFI:  These comments are

         10  submitted by Patrick Siconolfi, Executive Director

         11  of the Community Housing Improvement Corporation, an

         12  association representing small and mid- sized owners

         13  of rental housing in New York City.  CHIP's 1000

         14  members own or manage about 250,000 units of

         15  housing.  I submit these comments on CHIP's behalf

         16  regarding the above- referenced bills.

         17                 The 421-A program was designed to

         18  encourage development of new housing.  Today, this

         19  goal is more important than ever, as evidenced by

         20  the housing vacancy rate.  The most recent triennial

         21  Housing and Vacancy Survey asserts that in a City

         22  with 3,261,000 units of housing, a housing emergency

         23  exists.  It shows that even with such a large base

         24  of housing stock, only a negligible number of net

         25  new units are added each year.  In fact, only 17,000
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          2  units were added in each of the last three years.

          3                 CHIP has profound disagreements with

          4  the authors of the HVS, and believe that existing

          5  vacant units are improperly excluded from the count.

          6    Nevertheless, other aspects of the study are

          7  useful in that the study emphasizes that production

          8  of new housing units takes place on a scale far too

          9  small to satisfy the needs of a growing City.

         10                 The City needs to embrace policies

         11  which will accelerate the construction of new

         12  housing of all types.  Only through significant

         13  increases in the housing stock can there be a

         14  sustained response to the affordability and

         15  availability issue. More housing will inevitably

         16  yield more affordable rents and greater choice.

         17                 The proposed changes, including the

         18  proposal to extend the geographic exclusion areas to

         19  portions of Brooklyn, Queens, and upper Manhattan,

         20  and the elimination of the negotiable certificate

         21  program will discourage the development of new

         22  housing in many neighborhoods where it's sorely

         23  needed.  The proposed changes will do this by making

         24  housing development far more expensive.

         25                 CHIP encourages the Council to
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          2  explore and embrace options which will continue and

          3  even accelerate housing production.

          4                 Additionally, we believe that the

          5  long term benefits of housing incentive programs are

          6  economically advantageous because the life cycle

          7  taxes paid by newly constructed properties exceed

          8  the subsidy cost, because of the jobs created, and

          9  due to the economic participation of the residents

         10  of such apartments.

         11                 (Written Testimony Read Into The

         12  Record)

         13                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Good afternoon Chairman

         14  Dilan and distinguished committee members.  My name

         15  is Michael McGuire and I am the Director of the

         16  Mason Tenders' District Council of Greater New York

         17  and Long Island Political Action Committee.  The

         18  Mason Tenders' District Council is comprised of more

         19  than 15,000 members in six local unions of the

         20  Laborers' International Union of North America.

         21  These locals represent men and women working

         22  throughout the five boroughs as building

         23  construction laborers, mason tenders, plasterer's

         24  helpers, office and professional personnel,

         25  demolition workers, recycling plant employees, high
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          2  school teachers and asbestos and hazardous material

          3  abatement laborers.

          4                 We understand that there are many

          5  competing views about the future of the City's 421-A

          6  program.  The debate seems to have been whittled

          7  down to two bills:  Intro 486 and Intro 590.  I find

          8  this entire process somewhat disheartening for one

          9  particular reason.  There was quite a bit of talk

         10  from the members who crafted all of the bills about

         11  discussions with the "stakeholders". Unfortunately,

         12  it seems that no one considers the workers who

         13  actually construct these buildings as stakeholders

         14  in the process.

         15                 Affordable housing is very important.

         16    The members of this committee who have known me

         17  for a long time know that the Mason Tenders'

         18  District Council is an advocate for affordable

         19  housing.  Unfortunately, I seem to be in the

         20  minority when I express the opinion that it is just

         21  plain wrong to create this affordable housing by

         22  exploiting workers.  It is said that the road to

         23  hell is paved with good intentions.  Unfortunately,

         24  it seems it is also paved by laborers not being paid

         25  the area standard wages and benefits.
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          2                 It would have been proper to require

          3  worker standards be considered as part of the

          4  criteria for developers to receive the 421-A

          5  benefit.  I'm not saying all of the developments

          6  have to be built union- although that is what I'd

          7  like to see. However, giving tax breaks to

          8  developers who, in some cases, use the day laborers

          9  that they discard like used Kleenex, is

         10  reprehensible.  A recent report by OSHA determined

         11  that 86% of construction site fatalities in New York

         12  City occurred on non- union sites.  Remember, this

         13  report was issued by the Federal Occupational Safety

         14  and Health Administration, an organization

         15  controlled by the anti- labor Bush White House.  How

         16  bad does the situation have to be for that

         17  administration to issue a report that essentially

         18  says:  Unions are good?

         19                 $400 million a year in tax breaks

         20  with no conditions that say worker safety should be

         21  a consideration; with no conditions that say the

         22  workers should at least be paid enough so they can

         23  afford to live in some of this housing they are

         24  building; with no conditions that says the workers

         25  should have a modicum of training so that the City
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          2  eventually gets quality housing stock for its $400

          3  million investment.

          4                 With that said, Intro 486 is the

          5  superior plan.  The expansion of the exclusion zone

          6  to neighborhoods seeing large amounts of development

          7  makes perfect sense.  The establishment of a joint

          8  City- Mayoral reassessment commission makes it even

          9  better. New York is an ever changing city.  Who

         10  could have predicted ten or fifteen years ago that

         11  Lower Eastside tenement apartments, complete with

         12  bathtubs in their kitchens, would be renting for

         13  $3000 or more per month?  Or that limestones in Fort

         14  Greene and Prospect Heights would be going for a

         15  million dollars plus?   A regular reassessment to

         16  include or exclude emerging or declining

         17  neighborhoods is just good planning.

         18                 Maintaining the affordability mix at

         19  20% reserved for those earning 80% of the Area

         20  Median Income (AMI) is also a better option than the

         21  30% reserved for those earning 50% of the AMI that

         22  is called for in Intro 590.  While the needs of low-

         23  income New Yorkers should not be ignored, the needs

         24  of middle- income New Yorkers cannot be ignored.

         25  The middle- income base that makes this City work,
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          2  that pays the taxes and shoulders most of the other

          3  burdens, is slowly but surely being eroded.  Middle-

          4  income New Yorkers are fleeing the City in droves as

          5  New York increasingly becomes a city of the wealthy

          6  and the poor, with no place for the people in

          7  between.  If too much of that base is allowed to

          8  erode, our great city will collapse in on itself.

          9                 The inclusion of an Affordable

         10  Housing Fund takes an existing program- the

         11  Negotiable Certificate Program- that is economically

         12  inefficient, and replaces it with one that works.

         13  The Affordable Housing Fund has safeguards to make

         14  sure it gets used in the neighborhoods that need it

         15  most and that it gets spread out in those

         16  neighborhoods to help the maximum amount of people

         17  possible. The Fund has City Council oversight, and

         18  perhaps most important of all, a fiscal "lockbox",

         19  ensuring that funds will be used solely for

         20  affordable housing.

         21                 The last part I want to touch upon,

         22  and one of the few I have a problem with, is the

         23  assessed value cap.  Intro 486 calls for an assessed

         24  value cap of $65,000 per unit.  Intro 590 calls for

         25  a $65,000 cliff.  In our opinion, the cap is, by
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          2  far, better than the cliff.  The cliff system would

          3  force developers to keep as many units as possible

          4  at an assessed value of less than $65,000.  The cap

          5  system taxes developers at assessed value amounts

          6  that exceed $65,000.  While we applaud the concept

          7  of keeping units more affordable, our problem goes

          8  back to my opening remarks.  When assessed values

          9  are forced lower, it creates a downward pressure on

         10  construction costs.  There are only two ways for

         11  developers to significantly reduce construction

         12  costs:  By the use of substandard materials and by

         13  not paying trades men and woman a fair wage and

         14  proper benefits.  The result is exploited workers

         15  and a substandard construction product.

         16                 In an effort to improve the lot of

         17  the workers who will be building these developments,

         18  we would encourage a raise in the cap to no less

         19  than an assessed value of $85,000.  If that is not

         20  possible at this time, then maintain the cap at

         21  $65,000, but make the assessed value cap levels part

         22  of the discussion of the Reassessment Committee.

         23  This way we don't find ourselves a decade from now

         24  with an AV cap of $65,000 and workers earning

         25  amounts that, in real dollars, actually equate to

                                                            189

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  even less than they are earning today.

          3                 On behalf of the leadership and the

          4  15,000 members of the six local unions of the Mason

          5  Tenders' District Council of Greater New York, I

          6  urge this Council to pass Intro 486.  However, I

          7  also urge this Council to remember the middle-

          8  class, and to think about the working people in

          9  everything you do.  Thank you.

         10                 (Written Testimony Read Into The

         11  Record)

         12                 MS. ROSS:  Chairman Dilan, members of

         13  the Housing & Building Committee, thank you for the

         14  opportunity to testify.  My name is Ollie Ross and I

         15  have lived in Williamsburg for over 20 years in the

         16  Mitchell- Lama development, Lindsay Park.  Thousands

         17  of families and seniors live in Lindsay Park, and

         18  everyone is worried about the recent buy outs of

         19  Mitchell- Lama developments.  We have seen the

         20  drastic change in our neighborhood particularly over

         21  the last few  years, and there is growing pressure

         22  all around us with the development of luxury

         23  housing.  The character of the neighborhood is

         24  changing fast and I see people getting displaced all

         25  around me.  Many of these buildings going up are
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          2  simply too expensive for members of my community to

          3  afford and are really marketed to people from

          4  Manhattan who can afford a 2- bedroom apartment for

          5  $1,800 a month.

          6                 421-A is an important issue for

          7  Williamsburg and for similar communities, and while

          8  I respect Speaker Quinn, her proposed bill does not

          9  go far enough.  Williamsburg became a hot real

         10  estate market so quickly and has changed so fast- if

         11  421-A isn't extended Citywide, this kind of

         12  unchecked gentrification will happen to other

         13  communities.  I have seen the effects of rapid

         14  development of market rate units in Williamsburg and

         15  I have seen the way it can disrupt communities.  I

         16  believe that poor and middle income people have a

         17  right to the City and have a right to be able to

         18  live in their own communities.  Therefore, I have

         19  little choice but to urge you to support the Annabel

         20  Palma bill that would protect and promote affordable

         21  housing for working families all over New  York

         22  City.

         23                 Indeed, there is an affordable

         24  housing crisis throughout the City of New York.  It

         25  is becoming increasingly difficult to maintain a
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          2  living when, for many families, their wages are not

          3  keeping up with the rising cost of housing.  The

          4  City should recognize that people in all five

          5  boroughs struggle to pay for housing.  Affordable

          6  housing should be a priority not just in Manhattan

          7  and parts of Brooklyn, but citywide.

          8                 The 421-A Property Tax Law gives 25-

          9  year property tax abatements as- of- right to real

         10  estate developers.  We're simply asking that if

         11  developers benefit from this lucrative tax break,

         12  that the community also benefits through the

         13  production of affordable housing.  Why should

         14  developers be rewarded for building housing that

         15  almost no one in our community can afford?

         16                 We would also like to stress that the

         17  levels of affordability are often too high to

         18  accommodate working families in places like the

         19  south side of Williamsburg.  With all due respect to

         20  Speaker Quinn, her proposed bill defines an

         21   "affordable unit" as one that is available to a

         22  family making $56,000 per year. However, the median

         23  income in this area is less than $30,000 a year.

         24  The Palma bill, on the other hand, defines an

         25   "affordable unit" as one that is available to a
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          2  family making $35,000 per year. This seems fair.  We

          3  urge you to support housing for low and middle-

          4  income families by dropping the income level to 50%

          5  of AMI. We also urge you to support a 50% community

          6  preference provision for some of these affordable

          7  units to ensure that new housing is available to

          8  local community members.

          9                 We see neighborhoods all over New

         10  York City changing quickly and in an extreme way,

         11  not just in places like Williamsburg, but all over.

         12  Families are being forced out of their communities.

         13  My children and my friends' children can't afford to

         14  live in this neighborhood anymore and the seniors in

         15  the neighborhood who are on fixed incomes don't have

         16  many options if they get displaced.  I don't want

         17  this to continue to happen in my community or in

         18  others.  If affordable housing isn't produced

         19  citywide, this won't be the same City that we have

         20  known and lived in for generations.  Ensuring that

         21  affordable housing is produced and preserved forever

         22  is an invaluable investment in the future of New

         23  York.  We therefore support extending 421-A as the

         24  Annabelle Palma bill proposes.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 6:45 p.m.)
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